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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT '

The directors present thelr Strateglc Report on ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2023, This includes an overview of the Company’s structimre, strateglc outlook Including 2023 performance,
and principal risks and uncertalnties, R .

INTRODUCTION -

The principal activity of the Company, registered company number SC190287, is the supply of electricity and gas to
domastlc and business customers throughout Great Britaln ["GB*), Including customer registration, billing and handling
enqulrles In respect of these services, The Company Is also responslible for the assoclated metering activity, including the
smart meter Instatfation” programme, and managing fts smart solutions activitles which launched the UK's flrst
nationwlide installation service for air source heat pumps, solar panels, batteries and electric vehicle ("EV”) charging in
2022, -

Durlng 2023, an average of 4.6 millfon gas and electricity customers were supplied by the Company. At 31 December
2023, the Company supplled 4.5 milllon gas and electricity customers, The Company aims to deliver a top-class
experlence for [ts customers, one which is hassle-free, making it easier for customers to contact the business through a
range of routes and providing flexibility to meet customer needs. ’

[n order to support the UK's efforts to achleve ‘net zero' by 2050, the Company's Hydrogen department is working to
_ develop green hydrogen solutlons and opportunities. This activity wili continue for the foreseeable future.

The ultimate parent of the Company is tberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrofa”) whose shares are listed on all four stack markets In .
Spain, The immediate parent of the Company s Scottish Power Retall Holdings Limited {“SPRHL"}. Scottish Power kimited
{“SPL”} Is the United Kingdem (“UK") holding company of the Scottish Power Limited Group {“ScottishPower”) of which

. the Company is a member.

The Campany Is part of ScottishPower’s Customer business, (formerly known as the Energy Retail business).

Notwithstanding net liabllitles, the Accounts are prepared on a going concern basls. Refer to Note 1B2 for further details,

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

Operating review

~ Supply and market conditfons _ _

The enargy supply market and regulatory envirenment continues to be challenging for all suppliers in the Industry, The
sustained absence of a product market has resulted in most households in the Company's portfolic now being on the
standard varlable tartff (“SVT”} which Is subject to the price cap set by the UK's energy regulator {The Office of Gas and
Electricity Markets ("Ofgem"}}. Changes to the price cap methodology enabled suppliers to recover some of the 2022
costs Incurred but not previously recovered for price-capped customers durlng 2023: Energy prices were at thelr peak In
January 2023, and although prices fell during 2023, they remained almost double the Javel of previous years. This
presents vulnerable customers with financlal challenges. The Company continues to be concerned about custorner
affordability, particularly considering the increase of energy usage anhd assoclated costs during the winter months. Details
of how the Company provides support te its customers can be found on pages 10 and 11 of the Strategic Report.

in a challenging economic environment, there continues to be a focus on measures to address the cost of living
challenges’ being experienced by many in society. A number of electrlcity and gas customers will continye to face
challenging energy prices, particularly as additional government support measures introduced in 2022 ¢ome to an end.
“The Company recognises that everything it does Is about Its customers, from the energy It'supplias to the smart meters it

installs. .

Followlng the decision to exit the Industrial and Commercial {“1&C") supply market In 2022, the Company contlnues to
service Its remalning customer base but does not offer new fixed-term contract terms at the point of renewal. 1&C '
customers have the option of either leaving ScottishPower at the point of contract renewal or continulng to receive a
supply at default SVT prices. As a result of this policy, the I&C portfolio has continued to decrease In slze during 2023,

Government support schemes ‘ .

The Energy Bills Support Scheme {"EBSS”) which provided support by giving a credit to domestic electricity customers
endad In March 2023. The UK Govérment's Energy Price Guarantee (“EPG”) scheme provided a discount to domastic
customers durlng the first half of 2023, ensuring that a typlcal Direct Debit (“DB") household In the UK paid &n average of
£2,500 a year for thelr dual fuel energy bill. From July 2023 to March 2024 {when the EPG scheme-ended), the discount
only applied If prices rose above £3,000 per annum for a typlcal housekold, however, the price cap remained below this
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued -

level and therefore the scheme did not provide support to customers other than being used by the UK Government to
providea discount to prepayment customers which levellsed the price with those for the DD payment method until the
EPG scheme ended. The Energy Bill Relief Scheme [“EBRS”) for non-domestic customers ended in March 2023 and was
superseded by the Energy Bill Discount Scheme {"EBDS") which provided a lower leve! of support to these customers
until 31 March 2024,

- The Company’s position remalns that enduring government assistance is required to ease the burden an domestic
households most at risk. To this end, the Company continues to engage with the UK Government and Ofgem, to
champlon a targeted approach to support the most financlaily vu!nerab!e custorriers, such as the introduction of a social
tarlff.

Ofgem activity : =

Ofgem’s key focus during 2023 for the retarl sector focused on three key strateglc prioritles; ensuring prices are falr,

creating resilience in across the energy sector, and monitoring and enforcing performance standards for consumer,

standards and protections. In delivering these priorities, during the year Its work Included:

s introducing new financial resilience requirements for suppliers, to ensure suppllers are financially robust and limit
disorderiy exits from the market as experienced n 2021;

» making further amendments to the default price cap methodology to reflect changes to the market since the cap was
introduced and recovery of historic costs Incurred by suppliers as a result of temporary changes to the market;
consulting on proposals on Improving consumer standards within customer service and debt processes; and

+ Introducing new rules and guidance for the use of prepayment meters In the debt journey. '

During 2023, Ofgem continued to focus on Implementation and monitoring of new rules focused on ensuring the
“financial resilience of suppilers In the market. This Included ongoing reporting from supphers and subsequently an
appointment of a financial resilience supervisor. In additlon, from November 2023 suppllers have been required to
protect Renewables Obligation scheme payments on an ongolng basis. Suppliers must submit an annual adequacy self-
assessment report to Ofgem, {from March 2024), which includes an explanation of the supplier's plans to meet a new

requirement on capitaf adequacy which will be implemented on 31 March 2025, '

Ofgem published a decision to amend the approach to the allowance for earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT") margin
In the price cap effective from October 2023, and to introduce an additional temporary allowance for increased credits
provided to prepayment customers as a rasult of the continued costs of living crisis. A dedision on the introduction of an
additional temporary bad debt-related allowance was published in Q1 2024 and was Included [n the price cap effective
from April 2024 for twelve months, The allowance Is on a ‘float and true-up’ basls and will be reviewed to assess a need
for any true up from Aptil 2025, This deciston Is considered a positivd outcome and goes someway to alleviate the costs
incurred as a result of the Introduction of temporary restrictions of the use of prepaymant meters for debt in early 2023,
-and the subseguent pollcy changes implemented by Ofgem in this area later in 2023, In Q1 2024, Ofgem also published
its declsion to implement a levellsation and reconclliation process for prepayment prices under the default tarlff cap
which replaces the levellsation undertaken faor prepayment by the UK Government under the EPG scheme, with this
‘being In place from 1 Apri! 2024. Ofgem also continues to consult on further changes to the price cap methodology
including a review of operating costs, wholesale costs and further assessment of the approach to levelise payment
methods relatdd to price differenttals,

Ofgem published its declsion In October 2023 to introduce new rules from December 2023 to improve consumar
standards with a focus on three areas; having a customer service operation that meets consumer needs and protects and
prioritises vulnerable customers; ensuring early engagement with customers who are struggling to make payments for
their energy; and providing better visibllity to consumers of their suppliers’ consumer satisfaction performance, .

During 2023 the Company has continued to engage with the UK Government on a number of areas Including the
remalning governiment support schemes, the need for future support for domestic financlally vulnerable customers, the
future of the UK Government‘s energy efficiency schemes and the smart meter Installatlon programme.

The Company has continued engagement with Ofgem on all pollcy areas via bitaterai engagement and broader industry
_ routes, in order to Influence the proposals in the hest Interests of the Company and its customers.




'SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED -
. STRATEGIC REPORT continued

STRATEGIC OUTLODK continued

Customer debt
with customer bllls high, thé Company’s operational focus remalns on prompt cash col[ect!on, the retent!on of

customers on secure payment plans, and supporting its customer base to manage Its debt position, In early 2023, Ofgem
began a market-wide review of suppllers’” approach to switching customers to prepayment meters without consent as a
means to recovering debt, covering both prepayment meter Instaltation under warrant and remote change of smart .
meter mode, This review followed the temporary pause of this activity from 3 February 2023 by all suppliers to-allow
agreement of a new voluntary approach for the use of prepayment meters to reclaim debt without customer consent
with the Code of Practice published on 18 April 2023. After consultation, Ofgem introduced mandatory new rules and
guidance which came Into effect on 8 November 2023 replacing the Code of Practice. Suppliers must demonstrate
readiness to comply with the new rules ahead of restarting the use of prepayiment meters, and on 8 January 2024,
Ofgem announced that three suppliers, including the Company, had met these conditions and could restart this actlvity.
The Compaty continues to engage with. Ofgem on all aspects, including the recovery of additlonal debt created as a
result of the moratorium and the new rules which extend the group of customers who are deemed not suitable for
prepayment, notwithstandlng the temporary additional bad debt-related allowance that has aiready been announced
from 1 April 2024 fof twelve months. .

The suspension, of Involuntary prepayment installations has Hmited the options availabie to the Company to recover
debt. It has also had a significant impact on the Company’s ability to secure difficult to recover debt on a raasohable
repayment plan as from February 2023 untll January 2024, the Company could riot use- prepayment meters without
customer consent which, in the absence of suspension, Is the last resort of the debt journey. The adverse impact of the
temporary suspension and the introduction of the licence conditions for ‘Involuntary’ (i.e. without consent) prepayment
installations has yet to be fully determined. The Company continues to lobby Ofgem to ensure that any adverse costs
resulting from these actions are recovered in a fair and reasonable manner, '

Smart solutions, smart metering and hydrogen

The Company's Smart Solutions department are supporting communities and organisations on thelr path to net zero,
ensuring that nobody Is left behind. Through positive engagement, the Company is providing advice and supporting
communities to deliver energy efficlent Inltlatives Including the installation of low-carbon technologles, such as heat
pumps and solar panels. The Smart Solutions team use their knowledge and expertise, supported by local organisations
and people, to Identify and Implement focal smart energy solutions that.reflect the specific needs of each community.

Additionally, the Company continues to make- significant efforts to support the smart meter rollout and meet its
regulatory targets. As at December 2023, smart meters accounted for 57.0% of relevant meters in the Company’s
portfolio. For further information please refer to the “Non-financial key performance indicators’ section of the Strategic

Report,

Recognlsing the UK Government's green hydrogen target of 10-glgawatts (“GW") by 2030, the Company Is developing a
significant portfolio of green hydrogen production opportunities. Developments include the 10 megawatt (“mw”)
Whitelee project and the 15 MW Cromarty Joint development project, with partner Storegga, which were both successful-
in the UK Government's Hydrogen Allocation Round 1 {"HAR1"). Moreover, the 100 MW Felixstowe Port project (Iocated
within the UK's buslest container port) has been successfully awarded a Net Zero Hydrogen Fund grant.

Values in action

During 2023, governments and Gfgem continued to focus strongly on the need for suppliers to deliver a posftive

consumer exparlence for all customer groups, recognising that suppllers are required to identify the needs of thelr

customers, especlally those In vulnerable circumstances, Ofgen’s focus has been on Introducing additional protectlons

for customers via new policy and regulatory developments and also via complfance activity with Ofgem continuing to
" issue market-wide reviews of supplier compliance, largely dominated by the review of the use of prepayment meters in.
the debt journey. The impact of rising energy prices combined with the broader cost of living crisls has seen a real
challenge for customers, with the Company taking a number of actions to ensure its customer service offering can deliver
for customers In this challenging environment. This includes the actlons the Company has taken to support customers
directly, as well as supporting customers In accessing support from relevant third parties and influencing the UK

Government to implemaent support interventlons,
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Revence Operating profit/{loss) © Capital vestment

(Note {a)) (Note {a}) : (Note (b))

2023 2022 2023 2022 - 2023 2022
Finandial key perfarmance indicators : £m £m £m £m ) £m £m
ScottishPower Energy Retall : 76106 6,346.4 525.6 (323.1) . 481 . 394

{3)  Revenue and Operating profit/{loss) are presented on the Incoma statement on page 22,
(b} Ceplal Investment for 202315 presented within Notes 3 and 4 on page 34 and Includes capitafised customer contract costs,

The Company's revenue Increased hy £1,264.2 mlllion to £7,610.6 million In 2023. This is predominantly driven by
domestic revenues, re!lecting higher energy prices due to an increased price cap.

the Company’s optrating profit has increased. by £848.7 million to a pmfitable position of £525.6 million in 2023, In
2022, the Customer business’ retall gross margins were adversely Impacted as the price cap methedology did not allow
suppliers to fully recover high energy costs. in the first half of 2023, gross margins benefitted from specific price cap
allowances which facllitated recovery of these prior year fosses. In addition, limited energy cost market figuldity has
resulted In an Inability to perfectly match the commodity cost element of the quarterly price cap tariff with resulting
timing Impacts across 2022 {adverse) and 2023 (favourable), These two factors have contributed an estimated £686
rilllion of the year-on-year Improvement, :

Countering the Improved gross margin position, costs Increases were seen In Energy Company Obligation (“ECO")
scheme costs and In bad debt. Higher ECO costs reflect an Increase in delivery requirements for the ECO4 scheme as well
as new obligatiops under the Great British Insulatlon Schenie (formerly knowr as ECO+ and which ‘tommenced in July
2023). Higher bad debt costs reflect recent higher tariffs but are primarily a result of the suspension of Involuntary
installations of prepayment meters for the majority of 2023 and ensurlng the protection of vulnerable customers,

Capital investment has increased by £8,7 million primarlly due to continued investment In IT billing systems, Including
upgrades to allow improved interaction with smart meters and Increases In cyber securlty spend. .

Statement of financlal posltlon L
Net llabilities of the Company decreased by £434.2 million in the year to £54 2 mlii!on primarily due to the impact of the

statutory profit of £434.6 mimon.

Current trade and other receivables decreased by £264.1 million In the year to £1,471.9 million primarily due to the
winding down of government support schemes as well as a reduction ln loans receivable from Iberdrola Group

ccmpanles

Current trade and other payables decreas:ed by £869.2 million in the year to £1,628.7 million primarily due to a reduction
in amounts owed to Iberdrola Group companies as well as the winding down of government support schemes,

Neon-financial key performance indlcators . ’ ' Notes 2023 © 2022
Volume supplled (GWh)* ) {a) 33,072 . © - 38,199
Complaints handling . _ : b 2nd . 3rd
$mart meters In portfolio ’ {c} 57.0% 51.2%
Customers {miilions) . . '
- Electricity o . 2,753 . 2,862
- Gas ' 1,866 1,934
' - - 4618 - 4,796
*Glgawatt hours {"GWh")
{a} Reduced demand driven by customer behaviour and milder weather, n addmon to lower customer numbers and the continued withdrawal from
the I&C market.

{b} Based on the Cltizens Advice Domestic Energy Suppliars’ Customer Service Report. Rankings reflect the Company's position relative to the other
‘Big Seven’ energy companies. The Company has continued to Invest in its custorner service teams with a key focus on Impmving Its timely
management and resolution of complaints, coupled with an overall focus on service quallty across all of its advisors,

{c) Percentage of relevant customer base with a smart meter,
{d} Customer numbers are based on the average number of Meter Polnt Administration Numbers for eleclrlcily customers and Meter Polnt

Reference _Numhers for gas customers during the year to 31 Dacember,
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Outlook for 2024 and beyond .

During 2023, the Company saw a strong recovery of prior year losses within the default tarlff cap segment as well as a
change In the earnings before Income tax (“EBIT”} allowance methodology implemented by Ofgem in October 2023,
During 2024, the Company s expecting to see developments surrounding existing consultations on the operating cost
allowances and bad debt recavery assoclated with the losses from the new licence obligation relating to the restricting

prepayment warrant activity.

The Company will continue to engage with the UK Government and Ofgem to ensure that the regulatory framework {s
falr and fit for purpose. All poficies must enable the business to defiver the service and solutions needed to support its
customers and deliver net zero, This will Include continuing to focus on adjustments to the price cap and the use of
afternative mechanisms to allow suppliers-to recover efficlent costs. '

Whilst the Company Is experiencing less volatility In wholesale market prices than It has over the past couple of years,
there Is still some uncertainty surrounding the competitive product market, The Company recognises that many suppliers
are.now selling fixed-rate products, albelt there Is not as many avallable to consumers as there previously had been.
Additionally, pricing strategles appear less aggressive than what the market has seen historlcally, ' .

The Company has concentrated on making the adoption of smart solutions even easler by offering financing solutions for
solar panels, as well as Improving the design, quote and ordering experience. Focus remalns on developing public
charging networks for both EVs and smart solutlons. The key to future engagement will be to take advantage of using
energy flexibly in line with the energy system, so smart solutions-are developing new services to enable customers to

remotely manage their smart devices,

The Company is committed to developing a green hydrogen economy. In 2024, the -Company expect to take final

investment decisions (“FIDs”) on both the Whitelee and Cromarty green hydrogen facliittes, which have both been -

awarded government funding from HAR1, subject to varlous factors including positive outcome In both planning

applications, When constructed, these projects will be among the UK’s flrst and fargest green hydrogen production
" faclities, supporting the decarbonlsation of Industry and heavy transport with clean green fuel. S

Flnancial Instruments ' - . ‘ -
As at 31 December 2023 the Company's financlal Instruments Include Trade and other recelvables, Cash, Derivative

financial Instruments and Trade and other payables. The Company Is therefore exposed to credlt risk and treasury risk
(comprising both figuidity and market risk) arising from these financlal Instfuments, Throughout 2023, the Company was
also exposed to energy market risk assoclated with fluctuations in the market price of electricity and gas.

Credit risk : :
- Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet Its contractual obligations under a financlal Instrument or

customer contract, leading to a financlal loss. The credit risk management strategy adopted for significant types of -

financlal asset are as follows: . '

s Exposure to credit risk in the supply of electrlcity and gas arlses from the potentlal that customers default on their -

_involced payables, Both domestic and business customers’ creditworthiness fs reviewed from a variety of internal
and external information sources Including customer payment history and credit chacks. Recognising the current
fevel of energy market disruption, Including the ongoing cost of living crisls, and the forecast uncertalnty ih macro-
‘economic Indlcators, in fine  with 1FRS 9 ‘Finandlal Instruments’ (“IFRS -9*}, a forward-looking provisioning
methodology has been utflised to ensure that external factors are appropriately mitigated. Detalls of the Company's
‘provisioning methodology and the significant estimatfon uncertalnty assoclated with It are Included in Note 2.

e Credit Hisk from balances with banks and financlal Institutions 1s managed by ScottishPower's treasury department in
accordance with Iherdrola’s cash Investment procedure, Investments of surplus funds are mada only with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty by the Corporate Risk Manhagement
department. :

« The Company provides funding in the form of Interest-bearing on demand loans to other [berdrola Group
companies. Credit risk from Iberdrola Group companies Is considered to be low as tha Company is part of the -
iberdrola Group's centralised treasury function and no Group company has a credit rating lower than BBB+ (in line
with S&P Global Ratings). ' :
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Tregsury risk :

Liquldity risk Is the risk that the Company will have Insufficlent funds to meet its liabilities and market risk Is the risk of
toss that results from changes In market rates {e.g. interest rates}, Both are managed by ScottishPower's Treasury
department wheo are responsible for arranging banking facilities on behalf of the Company, The Company produces -
short-term rolling cash flow requirements and If necessary any requfred funding is obtained via credit facllities already In
place.

Energy market risk

ScottishPower's Energy Wholesale bus!ness ("Energy Wholesale"} is respnnsihle for managing. exposure to the UK
wholesate electricity and gas markets for both the Company and ScottishPower's Renewable production business. Energy
Wholesale do thls via trading strategies that utilise derlvative financial Instruments which “lock In’ energy prices which
are ultimately passed on to the Company. Thrs approach has contrlbuted to the Company's navigation of the volatile

energy markets.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES .
The delivery of Its strategy requires the Company to conduct business In a manner benefitting customers through
balancing .cost and risk, while delivering shareholder value and protecting its performarice and. reputation by prudently
managing the risks Inherent In the business. Te maintain this strateglc direction, ScottishPower, and so the Company,
devefops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all
fevels of the organisation. Further detalls of ScottishPower's risk management practices can be found In the most recent
Annual Report and Accounts of SPL, -

The principal risks and uncertalntles of the Company, that may impact current and future operatlonal and financlal
performanee and the management of these risks are described below:

Compliance with regulatory obligations especially in the
context of sudden changes of policy, or Interventions
outside established regulatory frameworks.

Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate
stakehalders to ensure that long-term regulatory stabllity
and political consensus is maintalined, and public backing Is
secured for the necessary Investment in-the UK energy
system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the rlsks
of ad hoc intervention In markets. '

Structural uncertainty resultlng from regulatory market
interventions Including review of price cap allowance and
changes In the llcence conditions for use of prepayment In
the debt journey.

Engagement with key industry stakeholders Including both
Ofgem and various government departments regarding the
requirement for suppllers to recover all costs, -and the
need to make fundamental changes to. the market to

.{ ensure efficlent suppllers can recover costs In the future

particularly focused on increased bad ‘debt costs.
Engagement Includes responding to consultatlons, and
proactively fobbying kéy stakeholders providing evidence
on the Company's costs and preferred regulatory
amendments,

‘The potential for non-complance with the UK
Government's mandate-to complete the rollout of smart
metering to customers in accordance with prescrlbed
timescales.

Dedicated project team focused on ensuring adequate
business processes and systems are developed. The team
Is responsible for ensuring the roliout capability is secured
to enable deployment of meters.

A UK general election Is likely to take place during 2024,
with energy pollcy expected-to be an lmportant area of
debate. A new government would seek to deliver
manifesto commitments which may result in regulatory
and policy changes.

Constructive and transparent engagement with all
appropriate stakeholders to understand the nature and
scope of any proposed changes, and to ensure that risks
and opportunities arising from these are managed

appropriately.
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-events Including global conflicts. As well as positive or
negative changes [n.the UK economy, Including: moverment
In the market price of electricity and gas..

impacts arising from market and regulatory reactlons to Positi\re and transparent engagement with all approprlate

stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stabllity
and political consensus is malntalned, and public backing Is
secured for the necessary investment In the UK energy
system, Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks
of ad hoc Intervention in markets. In addition to
monitoring ongoing developments, the Company has
spacific procedures in place to manage these key market
risks,

+ The mitigation of energy market risk [s
coordinated strategically by ScottishPower via
the use of derlvative financlal Instruments taken
out largely by other ScottishPower companles to
hedge volatility of wholesale energy.

The risk that the Company's investments or operations
have a significant impact on the environment and on
national and International targets to tackle climate change.

The Company Is committed to reducing its environmental
footprint and responding to the rlsks and opportunttles of
climate change by:

» reducing emisslons to alr, fand and water and
preventing environmental harm;

+ [dentifying . and managing climate risks and
opportunities, Implementing adaptat}on measures
where required;

+ minlmising energy consumption and use of
natural and human-made resources; and

¢ sourcing material resources responsibly, cutting

. waste and encouraging reuse and recycling; and
protecting natural  habitats and  restoring
blodiversity.

A major health and safety incident In the course of
operations could Impact staff, contractors, communities or
the environment.

-safety policy and procedures, alongside audit programmes

S e

The Company has certifled management systems In place
to deliver activitles as safely as possible. A ScottishPower
Health and Safety functlon exists and provides speclalist
services and support for the Company In refation to health
and safety. A comprehensive framework of health and

Is estabilshed, which aims to ensure not only continuing
legal compliance but also to drlve towards best practice in

all levels of health and safety operations,
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The Company operates within an em:lronment where
there Is the presence of sophisticated and opportunistic
cyber security threat actors motivated to identify and take
advantage of flaws and weaknesses In the Company's
cyber securlty defences. The Company, in allgnmeant with
UK Regulation, takes the protection of Its Data very
seriously. The Company, as part of ScottishPower,
continues to invest significantly In its people, processes,
and technologles to enhance [ts capabilities to prevent,
detect and respond to securlty threats,

The main risks are;

s  Operational technology used to manage the
production, management and distribution of
energy or physical safety systems {fire protection,
CCTV, alarm reception centres).

s T that enables the Company to operate critical
services,

s« The confldentlallt:y, Integrity, and avaliabiﬂty of
key information assets,

»  Other cyber securlty risks Impacting reputation.

The Company, as part of ScottishPower, continues to focus
on enterprise security risks through enhanced Internal
governance, complementad by the adoption of a 'three
lines of defence’ modal with clear roles and responsibilities
established. This has involved the appointment of a
ScottlshPower Chief Information Securlty Dfficer as well as
the creation of a Business lnformation Securlty Officer for
the diviston,

These risks are managed In accordance with the baslc
principles  deflned in Internal cyber securlty rules
ptomoting the safe handling of data, use of IT and
communlications systems, use of operational technology
systems and assets, and other cyber assets, reinforcing
detectlon, preventlon, defence, and response capabilities
against possible attacks, ‘

The therdrala Group, of which the Company I5 a part,
currently has specific Insurance against cyber risks, under
the terms allowed by the Insurance market, which Is
revised and updated periodically in view of the rapid
evolution and wide variety of cyber risks.

Impact of competition on the'éornpany‘s market share and
profitabllity.

Constantly managing the Company's operating cost base to
ensure that Its profitability Is protected and focusing on
growth  through organic and other acquisition
opportunities, '

Focus on deepening relationship with customers through
Increased product holding and other value-add features
and beneflts, designed to Improve customer engagement

| and retention, and growth in capacity of the Company's

sales channels.

Increased focus on affordablility due to the cost of living
crisis creates a greater number of consumers at risk and a
greater burden on suppllers to service and support
customers, The future level of support offered by the UK
Government which deliver benefits to customers struggling
with thelr energy bills may be lower,

Increase In the level of overdue debt, drlven by the impact
of rising bills, high cost of llving and deterioration In the
economy, Impacting on the level of debt write-off
required,

The Company, as part of ScottishPower, confinues to
dellver on improvement actions In relation to vulnerability
and affordabllity, Engagement continues with the UK
Government, third parties and Ofgem, on the challenges
facing suppliers In supporting customers durlng the
ongolng cost of living crisls, and. the need for more
targeted consumer protection for the Company's most
vulnerable customers, -

There are measures In place across the Company to
manage the key drivers of overdue debt, assess and
implement remedial and preventative action, and to
establish key metrics to monltor progress In reducing debt
levels, Refer to Note 2 for further detalls.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued o - '
The Company continues to monitor and assess the impact of additional security risks as a result of terrorism, war and
other world events and will put mitigating actions in place if and when appropriate.

ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS .

The Importance of engaging with stakeholders

The Company strongly beliaves that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders, especially its people, is key
to promoting its success and values, Meaningful engagement with stakeholder groups supports the ethos of sectlon 172
of the Companies Act 2006 which states that directors should have regard to stakeholder Interests when discharging
their duty to promote, In good falth, the success of the Company for the benefit of Its members as a whaole, Detalis of
how the Company engages with Its stakeholders, and how these activities Influence the Company's operatlons, are set
out below, : ' :

Key stakeholders
The Company, has flve key stakeholder categorles: people; energy customers; government and regulators; suppliers and

contractors; and community and environment,

Behind these stakeholders are many people, and Institutions, organisations and groups. All of them, with their tlecisions
and opinions, Influence the Company, and in turn, are also affected by the Company's activitles, In additlon, these
stakeholders Interact with each other, creating a universe of relationships that the Company needs to manage In order to .
achteve a better understanding of its operating environment and to deliver a more sustainable peéformance across its

actlvities,

Shareholders aré Important to the Conipany. The Company's relationship with'lts shareholders is governed by the
Company’s Articles of Assoclatlen and provisions of the Governance and SustalnabHity System which apply to the
Company and ScottishPower, of which the Company Is a member. As the Company Is uitimately wholly-owned by
lherdrola, all ultimaté shareholder management activities are carrled out by lberdrola in accordance with 1ts own
shareholder Engagement Policy as published at wwiw.lberdrola.com. '

PEOPLE . . .

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 926 employees, working across a range of roles. These employees make a
real difference In determining how successfully the Company operates. The creativity, Innovation and indlviduality of the
_Company’s employees enables the Company to bulld on Its future capability to operate effectively in a competitive -
market and continue to have aspirations which are challenging and rewarding. The Company respects and recognises the

importance of Individuality as part of its ongoing cormitment to promoting a culture where Individuality Is celebrated.

The Company also understands that being a diverse business goes beyond having Ie.gally campliant policles and practices;
it includes a focus on creating an Innovative, Integrated organisation where people feel valuad and insplring them to
perform at thelr best. . ' C .

in November 2023, ‘Workday’ became the Company’s primary People IT system for managing key peoble processes
_across the entire, employee journey. Workday supports a-host of new processes which will change how the buslness
interacts and develops Its people. As such, this will enhance-the employee experience.

As part of ScottishPower, the Company's engagements with its employees s driven by the decislons, policies and
procedures In place at ScottishPower level, The directors of the Company ensue that in applying these ScottishPower,
decislons, policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company.

Detalls of the following areas in relation to employee engagement which apply fully to the Company are provided in the:
most recent Annual Report and Accounts of Scottish Power UK plc {"SPUK"): - ’
« employment regulation; '
+  ftraining; .
« employee feedback and consultation;
inciusion and diversity;
- rewards and henefits;
health and safety; and
employee health and wellbeing.

* . % @&
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued
Modern Slavery Statement g
The term 'modern slavery' covers bath slavery and human trafficking. ScottishPower, and so the Company, is committed
to human and labour rights and to eliminating modern slavery that could In any way be connected to its business. In
accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, ScottishPower has produced Its own Modern Slavery Statement, which is
subject to annuat approval by the board of directors of SPL, This statement is published on the ScottishPower website at:
www.scottishpower.com/ "Sustainabllity’/ ‘Sustainable business'/ 'ScottishPower's Modarn Slavery Statement”.

ENERGY CUSTOMERS _

The Company provides energy and related services to milllons of domestic and businass customers, The Company's
success depends on its abllity to understand and meet the needs of its customers, and engagement Is key to fts success In
this rapldly changing environment. The Company seeks feedback in several ways Including forums, market research and
product testing, as well as via complaints channels and surveys.

' Customer service . :
Delivering excellent customer service to customers continues to be the Company's key priority. The Company works hard
to ensure that the customer Is at the centre of everything it does. The Company contlnually assesses lts processes and
customer Journeys to help ldentify and Implement improvements where necessary. This is to help ensure that the
Company meets all expectations. The Company Is relentless in Its pursult to Improve the customer experience, In 2023
the Company saw Improvements in its key customer services metrics, including average wait times and first-time
resolution of customer querles.

The Company continues to focus on delivering customer service through a number of digital channels as well as retaining
its traditional telephone channels. Diglta! tools are the channel of choice amongst most of the customer base with
mobile apps now being the most frequently Utilisad self-service tool, alongside digital online web chats, Bullding on the
Company's success [n 2022 when it was recognised for its digital commitment, and awarded eCommerce ‘App of the
Year, the Company took the Silver Award for UK eCommaerce ‘App of the Year' In 2023 , This recognises the continued
improvements and functionality the Company is offering customers via this channel, Customer contact via webchat
continues to be a popular channel and volumes contihued to grow In 2023 with Increased use of automatioh,

2023 has seen the adoption of digital channels which continue to grow. A key focus has been the expansion and stabllity
of the Company’s In-app prepayment experience, in line with the smart meter rollout programme to these customers.
Supporting the Company’s ambitlon to expand its digltal footprint, the Company alms to enable a 'digita) for all’ strategy
through Improving its web accessibillty standafds. In addition to the growth of and enhancements to key self-service
account tools, there has been a continued focus on leveraging the capabliities of smart meters to deliver automated
services and insights to help customers gain a better understanding of their energy usage. This has been achieved by
fmprovements such as additional enhancements to the smart meter consumptlon Insights and the launch of solar and
battery insights functionalities. .

Customer service contact volumes and service levels were impacted by the cost of living crlsls, associated government
schemes, and energy price increases durlng the perfod January to March 2623, The Company responded to this increased
contact volume by expanding resourcing and extending the wabchat services operating hours, Contact volumes started
to decrease from April 2023, Service levels Improved with the overall contact volumes and average walt times both
decreasing and stabllising throughout the remainder of 2023,

Customer support ‘ :
The Company continues to ensure that it supports Its vulnerable customers through a wide range of support mechanisms

" for both financlally and non-financially vulnerable customers. These services include:

«  Offering a range of options for customers to get in touch including phone, webchat, and emall options. The
- Company assesses the needs of its customers and adusts its offering to ensure that It meets its customer needs,
This includes extending opening hours including for specific potentially more vulnerable customer groups and over
winter perlods to make it easier for customers to get in touch.
+  Intelligent routing of contacts to speciatist support teams to manage customers who are identiﬂed 8s belhg
vulnerable or potentially in need of additional support. This Includes Prepayment Off Supply teams, Affordabitltv
teams and the ‘Extra Care’ teams {linked to customers with additlonal support rieeds).

10



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETALL LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT continued

ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS cantinued : | .
¢  The Company also offers a dedicated phohe line for Citizens Advice to get In touch on behalf of customers, in 2023,
- the Company expanded support for other third partles, ranging from national organisations like Mational Energy
Actlon to smaller, local charities such as South Seeds, by launching a Third Party Asslstance Team. This enhanced
" support has been positively recelved and Is benefiting customers seeking help from third party organisatfens, in
~ particular by securing a faster resolution for them, ' _ .
o Toreduce the tisk of prepayment customers going off supply, the Company offers periods of friendly credit’, where
the customer will stay on supply, without the need to top up their meter. Where this is not technically possible, the
Company offers Increased emargency credit, : S
«  Recognising the wider Impacts of financial hardship, the Company has included mental health tralning across all
customer service agents, to allow them to respond sensitively to customers who are experiencing such difficulties,
s The Company offers extra help and additional support options under its Priority Services Register for those non-
financlally vulnerable customers who may find It more challenging to manage their energy account. .
«  The Company has a range of alternative payment options and tarlffs- for different customer circumstances and
offers flexible repayment schemes for those who have built up debt.
e For custamears who may be struggling to manage their energy costs, the Company offers advice on how to reduce
energy consumption through simple actlons by the customer or via the ECQ scheme.
¢ The Company also provides signposting to third parties who can offer additional guldance and support Including in
relation to debt advice and energy efficiency advice, to the ScottishPower Hardship Fund and to the Company's
Prepayment Voucher Scheme which provides additional non-repayable funding to eligible customers. '

e  For the most vulnerable customers, the Company also offers a dedicated team of National Community Lialson

‘Officers whose sole purpose Is to provide in-heme supporti

The Company’s overall focus Is on prompting customers to engage as early as possible so that it can provide the support
they need, whether that be within the Company or in ensuring those customers who need broader support than the
Company can offer, have direct access to third parties who can provide [t.

The Company is also raising awareness of the measures gustomers can take to reduce the impact of increasing energy |
costs. This Includes arranging for a smart meter to be installed, which Is the best way to track energy consumption by
showlng a customer the cost of the energy they are using and ensures they only pay for the energy they use by providing

regular, automatic meter readings,

Furthermore, the Company offers further support for vuinerable customers with their energy bllls through the Warm
Home Discount Scheme {“WHD"}, The WHD Is the UK Governmernit's main policy for tackling fuel poverty. The scheme
contlnues to be delivered by enargy suppliers, principally to qualifying customers, by providing rebates on electricity
accounts to help when bills may be higher over the winter period. Durlng scheme year twelve, which operated from 1
Aprit 2022 to 31 March 2023, the Company spent £29.9 million providing assistance to 199,532 customers by applying a
rebate of £150 to their electricity account. In addition, £2.2 million of funding was awarded to three third party
organisations to deliver industry initlative projects to provide a range of assistance to domestic customers. The
Company's partners delivered energy efficiency advice, energy efficient white goods, and measures to improve the
energy efficiency of the property where they lived, Other projects focused on further financlal support providing fuel
debt assistance and benefit entitlement checks,

Energy efficlency : . :

The dellvery of energy efficlency measures continues to be an important responsibility of the Company, and 2023 was
the tenth year of delivery of the UK Government’s ECO scheme. The ECO scheme is fundamental to improving the fabric
of British homes In'the pursult of achleving net zero and focuses on reducing heating costs for the most vulnerable
customers and improving the energy efficiency of properties, in July 2022, the ECO4 legisiation came into effect with the
obligation running untll March 2026, The focus of ECO4is on the most vulnerable households In the least efficlent homes
{Energy Performance Certificates (“EPC”) Bands E, F and G) and targets a whole house improvement project based on a

fabric-first approach.

This will see a drop in the number of propertles treated, however, the majorlty of those treated will be improved by a
rninimum of two EPC bands with multiple measures dellvered to each home, Bullding on the surplus delivery from ECO3,
which ensured the supply chaln remained active and delivering energy efficiency measures to customer as soon as
practicable, the Company’s supply chaln commenced formal delivery of ECO4 measures In August 2022, but defivery was
Initially cautious while the supply chaln and obligated suppliers adjust to the naw regquirements of the obligation,
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued
However, the second half of 2023 saw a significant increase in delivery with the Companys supply chain partners
deflvering almost doubie the volume of ECO4 savings compared to H1 2023.

in July 2023, the UK Government launched the GBIS. This three-year programme will fook to complement ECO4 by
delivering single insulation measures such a loft and cavity wall insulation to hundreds of thousands of the least energy
efficlent homes In the fower Council Tax bands, as well as targeting the most vuinerable homes across the country, The
Company expects dellvery of this obligation to gather momentum into 2024 as the supply chalns adjust to the new
obligation. : '

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORS

Governments and regulators play a central role In shaplng the energy sector. The Company engages with them directly
and through trade assoclations, responding to issues of concern and providing expertise to support poficy development.
Through this engagement, the Company aims to contribute to the dellvery of a UK energy system that functions’in the
interests of customers now, and in the future, including achievement .of the UK and Scottish Governments’ net zero

decarbonisation targets.

Retall energy prices have now falten back from thelr peak in Winter 2022/23, taking the Ofgem price cap be!ow the UK
Government’s protected Energy Price Guarantee level of £2,500 per annum untll June 2023 and £3,000 per annum from
July 2023 to March 2024, for a typleal household paying by direct debit. Nonetheless, at the end of 2023 energy prices
were stilf around 80% higher than they were three years previously, and many consumers are stlll facing severe cost of
living pressures, The Company continues to work with Ofgem to ensure that the consumers who are struggfing t6 pay
. their bills receive appropriate support, particulariy the most vulnerable. The Company has alsc worked with Ofgem to
improve the design of the price cap so that suppliers can better recover efficiently incurred costs, This has enabled the
delayed recovery of costs Incurred In 2022, with the result that suppliers are now better placed to achleve the levels of
financlal resilience that will be required to survive future price shocks,

SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS
As part of ScottishPower, the Company’s engagement with its suppllers and contractors Is drwen by the decisions,
polictes and procedures In place at a ScottishPower level, The directors of the Company ensure that in- appiying these
ScottishPower declstons, policies and procedures they are meeting their dutles to the Company, The Company's suppliers
have a key role to play in the delivery of the Company's projects and services that will provide a fow-carbon future for
the UK, The Company alms to develop and malntain strong relationships across its supply base with a focus on health and
safety, quallty, cost and sustalnabliity. The Company expects its suppliers to operate to a high standard including working
in an ethical and sustainable manner, and the Company has a range of policies that all suppllers must adhere to,
including the ScottishPower Code of Ethics.

In 2023, the Company continued to increase Its focus en the Environmental, Soclal and Governance {VESG") credentials
of its maln suppliers using the ScottishPower supplier risk management system, Go Supply. This system has provided
significant additlenal Insight Into ESG factors of the Company’s supply chaln. The Company also works closely with those
suppliers identified as having weaker ESG traits to support their development through tmprovement plans and guldance. .

Engagement with suppllers Is always a critical activity for the Company but has become even more impartant as the
Compary adapts to the geopolitical and macroeconomic challenges. The Company Is facing fonger lead times for some
aquipment and several of its suppllers have also. been impacted by labour shortages, The Company have looked to
. support its supply chain during these challenging times by working coffaboratively on forecasting its requirements and it
has also established customs brokerage services.

COMMUN;TV AND ENVIRONMENT
" The Company alms to be a trusted, respected, and fuIEy tnten grated part of the community, by operating with Integrity,
transparency and warking closely within the communlty to build relationships,

The Company's Smart Cittes team within the Smart Solutions department are focused on helping decarbonise at a
community level working malnly with local authorlties but also with other community groups, such as housing
assoclations, Smart Cities can reach consumers where a private finandal Investment may be unachievable; through local
authorities and community groups they can access jow-carbon technologias. tn addition, by déploying at scale, the
Company can reduce the price per solution. ‘
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ENGAGING WiTH STAKEHOLDERS continued

The Hydrogen department Is working with businesses across. the UK to help support their strategic alms to decarbonise
thelr oparatlons, For three years it has supported the Scottish Schools Hydrogen Challenge with the purpose of educating
young people about the Importance of green hydrogen in tackling the climate emergency, -

In addition to supporting customers, the Company alse supports the charlty sector, particularly Its longstanding
relationship with Cancer Research UK During this difficult period for charities, customers on the ‘Help Beat Cancer’
tariffs continue to make = vital contribution to the incredible work of Cahcer Research UK. The Company has ralsed over
£40 milllon to date through a combination of sponsorshlp of events like Stand Up to Cancer, sales of the ‘Help Beat
Cancer’ tariffs, and fundralsing activities.

. The Company engages regulariy Wlth the kev industry stakeholders such as Ofgem, Cltlzens Advlce and Ombudsman
Services, to keep them fully updated of Its community actlons,

The Company s one of the remalning suppiiers that have Nationai Community Liaison Offlcers (“CLOs"}. Its CLOs focuson
- supporting customers who have concerns over thelr energy consumption or billing to ensure clear understanding. They
also provide support for those struggling with thelr energy bills. This ls done in the customer's home, The Company s
CLOs also provide locational support to its business customers, .

INNOVATION ‘
ft Is crucial that the Company continues to [nnovate and drwe forward towards a decarbonised smart energy future. By
champloning innovative technologies, bringing dowh the casts of decarbonisation and ensuring that no communities are
teft behind on the road ta net zera, the Company continues to lead by example in making sure clean, affordable energy is
_avalfable to all. The Company's model of open innovation, engagement and collaboration with its partners and other
organisations, generate ldeas and ansplratlon which contmues to drive Its innavation strategy. .

-_The Company continues to address the challenges of finding a sustainable and affordable solutlon for domestic heat,
Having already launched ‘a natlonwlide !nstallatlon service for alr source heat pumps, solar panels, batterles and EV

charging.

The Company’s Smart Solutions department are supporting communities and organisations on their path to net zero,
_ensuring that nobody Is left behind. Through positive engagement the Company Is providing advice and supporting
communities to deliver energy efficlency Inltiatives Incliding the Installation of low-carbon technologles {“LCTs") such as
heat pumps and solar panels, Smart Solutions use thelr knowledge and expertise, supported by local organisations and
people, to Identify and implement local smart energy solutions that reflect the specific needs of each communlty.

The Company has been developing an Industry-leading home energy management system to give customers better
control of LCTs and Inslght on overall energy consumptlon The solution will enable customers to automate contro! and
optimisation of thelr LCTS and monitor home consumption with smart meters offering near real-time vislbility of energy
. usage. This will also provide the opportunity for deeper engagement with customers into the savings that can be
achieved through control of their assets based prlmarliy on the greenest and cheapest times of the day for energy prices

The outcomne will provide customers with a product offering that helps them reduce thelr energy consumption, carbon
footprint and save them money on energy costs by maximising usage during these cheaper energy window,

Addltionally, the Company is looking to enter Into the flexibllity market through participation In domestic customer

demand response Initiatives, such as National Grid Electrlcity System Operator’s {"ESOQ’s") Demand Flexibility Service and

Project Equinox, an Innovative heat pump flexibility trial led by National Grid and funded by Ofgem’s Network innovation

Competition. Eligible smart meter customers will have access to an app which will notify them of certain peak times and
_when to reduce thelr consumption to help balance supply and demand. As well as reducing thelr energy usage and

having a posttive Impact on thelr carbon faotprint, customers will be rewarded for every kilowatt hour ("kWh") they turn

down, when compared to thelr basellne usage, The Company Is looking to expand its flexibility offering to customers In
" the future via participation in a series of further trlals, programmes ahd demand response events,
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Statement by the directors in performance of thelr statutcrv duttes !n accordance with section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006

~ The Companies {Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulations 2018 requires the directors of ScottlshPower Energy Retalt Limited
to glve a statement which describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) of the
Compantes Act 2006 when discharging thelr duty under that section. .

The directors acknowledge and understand thelr duties and responsibliities, inciuding that, under section 172 of the
Companles Act 2006, a director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely
to promote the success of the company for the beneﬂt of Its members as a whole, and In doing so have-regard (amongst
other matters) to: .

{a) the Hkely consequences of any declsioh In the long-term;

{b) the Interests of the company's empEoyees,

(¢} the need to foster the company's business re!ationshlps with suppllers, customers and others;

{d)} the Impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment;

(e} the deslrability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of businass conduct; and

{f} the need to act falrly as between members of the company.

The delivery of the Company's strategy requires the Company to conduct business In a manner benefitting customers
through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting the performance and reputation of the
Company by prudently managing risks inherent in the business. In carrying out this strategy, the directors’ dutles under
saction 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been consldered.

The directors strongly believe that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders and employees is key to
promoting the success of the Companv Detalls of the key stakeholders of the Company, and how It engages with them

are as foliows:

+ Energy customers; detafls of how the Campany engages with Its customers are explained In the ‘Energy customers’
sectlon of the Strategle Report, on-pages 10 to 12, During 2028, the Company's board of directors (“the Board”)
approved the express adoption by the Company of the ScottishPower Data Protection Poltcy which applies to the
processing of any personal data, including customer data, by the Company,

# People: details of how the Company engages with its employees are set out in “the ‘People’ section of the Strateglc
Report, on pages & and 10. During 2023, the Board approved the express adoption by the Company of the Iberdrola
People Management Polley, which makes provisions regarding the human resoufces framework appi!cabte to the
Company.

« Communities and the environment; detalls of how the Company engages with communities and considers the -
environment are set out In the ‘Community and envirenment’ section: of the Strategle Report, on pages 12 and 13,
During 2023, the Board approved the express adoptlon by the Company of the therdrola Stakeholder Engagement
“Poliey which makes provisions regarding the Company's relationship with Its stakeholders, Including commun/ties,

» Suppliers and contractors: detalls of how the Company engages with lts suppliers are sat out in the ‘Suppllers and
contractars’ section of the Strateglc Report, on page 12, During 2023, the Board approved the express adoption by the
Company of the ScottishPower Modern Slavery Policy which makes provisions regarding the Company's supply chain.

¢ Government and regulators: details of how the Company engages with governments and regulators are set out In

* the 'Government and regulators’ sectlon of the Strateglc Report, on page 12. Durlng 2023, the Board approved the
express adoption by the Company of the ScottishPower Politlcal Engagement Policy which makes provislons regardlng
“compllance with political engagement rules.

1n addition, a statemeh_t In relation to the Company's Interaction with Its shareholders is described In the Introduction to
the ‘Engaging with stakeholders’ section of the Strategle Report on page 9. .

The directors, both individually and together as the Board, consider that the decisions taken durlﬁg the year ended 31
December 2023 In discharging the function of the Board were In conformance with thelr duty under sectlon 172 of the

Companles Act 2006,
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT continued .
The Board Is assisted In considering key stakeholders as part of the decision-making process by the Incluslon of

stakeholder considerations in board papers as appropriate, and board papers are carefully reviewed and considered by
all dlrectors. o : : .

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Director
- Lip May 2024
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'SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT '

The directors present thelr report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023,

INFORMATION CONTAINED WHTHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors have chesan to disclose informatlon on the following, required by the Companies Act 2006 to be Included
in the Directors’ Report, within the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 15;
s - Informatlon on financlal risk management and policies; .
s Information regarding future developments of the Company’s business;
+ Information In refation to innovation activities; and :
“» informatlon on employee regulations and policies.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The net profit for the year was £434.6 mlllion (2022 loss of £258.1 million). No divldend was paid durlng the current year

or prlor yéar.

Board composition

_ The directors who held office during the year were as follows:
Andrew Ward
Valerte Sim

At the date of thls report, there have been no changes to the composliion of the Board since year end.

DIRECTORS’ iNDEMNITY :
In terms of the Company's Articles of Assoclation, a quallfylng Indemnity provision is In force for the benefit of all the

directors of the Company and has been in force during the financlal year. In addition, the Dlrectors have been granted a

© qualfying third party indemnity provision, which continues In force. .

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable faw and
regulations. )

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financlal statements In accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable taw (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practlce) including Financlal Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’

(”FRS 101”)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financlal statements unless they are satlsﬁed that they give a.
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In
preparing these financlal statements, the directors are required to:

» selectsultable accountlng policles and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, sub]ect to any materlal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ assess the Company's abllity to continue as a going concern, drsclosing, as applicable, matters refated to golng
concern; and

¢ use the golng concern basls of accounting unless they elther Intend to ilquidate the Coempany or to cease
operations, or have no realistic altermative but to do so.

The directors are résponsible for keeplng adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financal statements comply with the Companles Act 2006. They are responsible for such
. Internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibllity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other

irregularities.
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" STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL-REPORT AND ACCOUNTS continued
Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strateglc Report and a Directors’
Report that complies with that law and those regulations. .

The directors are responstble for the maintenance and Integrity of the corporate and financlal informatton relating to the
Company Included on the ScattishPower website. Leglslation in the UK governing the preparation and dissamination of

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. :

_ Responsibiity statement of the directors in respect of the annual financial report ,
Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed above, confirms that to the hest of thelr knowledge:
e the flnancial statements, prepared In accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, glve a true and
falr view.of the assets, liabilitles, financial position and profit or loss of the Company; and
e the Strategic Report Includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face. '

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the directors in office at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:

«  sofar as they are aware, there Is no relevant audit Information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and .

s they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director In order to rrake themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that iInformation.

“This confirmation is glven and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companles
Act 2006, o

AUDITOR : - :

'KPMG LLP was re-appolntéd as the auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2024,
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Valerle Sim '

Director

{i-May 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited {“the Company”) for the year ended 31
December 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive
income, Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2,

in our opinion the financial statements:

s givea true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 and of its proflt for the year
. then ended;

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framewark: and ‘ '

.  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and appi[cabie law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fuffilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to other entitles of
public interest. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
apinion,

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going
concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company's business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period.

Since the entity may need financial support from other group entities if these risks crystallise, we assessed the risk that
this support would not ke available. We inspected letters recelved by the directors indicating the group's fntention to -
provide this support, examined financial statements and internally provided projections to assess its ability to provide
this support over the period of the audited entity's going concern assessment, and assessed the business reasons why
the group may or may not choose to provide this support. '

Woe considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 182 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the directors' assessment of going concern, including the identified risks and dependencies.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

s we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate;

+ we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there s not, a matenal uncertainty related to
events or canditlons that, individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern for the going concern period; and

+ we found the going concern disclosure in note 1B2 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a
guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could

indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment

procedures included:

¢  Enquiring of directors, internal audit and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company’s high-level policies
and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the Internal audit function, and the Company’s channel for
“whistleblowing”, as weli as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.
Reading Board meeting minutes.

s Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT , ‘
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED continued

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect continued
We commuricated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall
knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls,
in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias
in accounting estimates such as the ECL provision. Our forensic specialists assisted us in identifying key fraud risks, This
included attending calls with the audit team, holding discussion with the engagement partner, engagement manager,
and assisting with designing and executing relevant audit procedures to respond to the identified fraud risk.

" On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk due to the highly regulated systems in place for the revenue
recognised in the year across all customer bases and due to there being no new government schemes introduced in the
year.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks. -

We performed procedures including:

e Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation. These Included those posted by senior finance management and those posted to
unusual accounts.

*  Assessing whether the Judgements made In making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with lows ond regulations
We Identified areas of faws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with the dirvectors and others
management {as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors and other management the policies
and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. :

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughouf our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company Is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
' feporting fegislation (including refated companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation,
- and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statement items. : -

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: GDPR compliance, health and-
safety legislation, Ofgem regulations, employment law fraud, corruption and bribery legislation and environmental
protection legislation. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws
and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from refevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation ' _

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
. misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in
accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from
the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it. :

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot
be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED continued

Strategic report and directors’ report
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon; :

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on

~ our fihancial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or Inconsistent with the financial

statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

-¢  we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in ‘those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

& In our opinion thosé reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report 'by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not n agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received alf the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects :

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 16 and 17, the directors are ‘responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternatwe but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable .
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of pur responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted '
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

I Mttt

William Meredith (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
-Chartered Accountants

319 St. Vincent Street

Glasgow

G25AS

15 May 2024
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION o
at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 3 ‘88.3 1152

_Property, plant and equipment 130.4 1416

Property, plant and equipment In use 4 129.8 - 1416
Proparty, plant and equipment in the course of construction 4 0.6 o -

Right-of-use assets 5 0.2 0.1

Non-current trade and other recelvables [ - 9.2

Deferred tax asset 7 - 165

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS © 2189 282.6
CURRENT ASSETS '

- Inventorles ‘ g 237.8 2574
Current trade and other recelvables . 6 14719 1,736.0
Current tax asset - - 64.5
Cash , 33 7.2

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,713.0 -2,065.1
TOTAL ASSETS 1,9319 2,347.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY .

Of shareholders of the parent {54.2) {488.4),
Share capital 55.4 55.4
Heidge reserve 0.4) -
Retained losses {109.2) {543.8)

TOTAL EQUITY {54.2) (488.4)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-current provisions -9 - 4.1

Non-_cuyrént pank borrowings and other financla! liahilities 1.5 -
Derivative financial Instruments 05 -
Other financial llabllitles 1.0 .

Noen-current lease llabRitles 5 0.1 -

Non-current trade and other payables 10 0.5 1.0 .

Non-current Incoma tax liabillties 6.2 6.2

Deferred tax liabilities 7 3.8 -

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES : 12,1 11.3
CURRENT.LIABILITIES _

Current provisians 9 289.5 326.8

Current bank barrewings and other financial liabilities 0.5 -
Other financlal liablkitles 0.5 -

Current |ease liabilities - g 0.1 0.1

. Current trade and other payables 10 1,628.7 2,497.9
Current tax {lahilities 55.2 -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,974.0 2,824.8
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,886.1 2,836.1
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,931.9 . 2,347.7

Approved by the Board and signed on lts behalf on |y May 2024,

\/Mu/v\&

Valerie Sim
Director

The accom_panyiﬁg Notes 1 to 20 are an integrat part of the Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Notes - Em £m
Revenue it 7,610.6 - 6,346.4
Procurements (6,161.3} {5,979.5)
GROSS MARGIN 1,449.3 366.9
Staff costs 12 (62.8) {71.5)
External services (423.3) (391.2)
Other operating results 374 49.1
. Net operating costs _ {448.5) {413.6)
Taxes other than income tax 13 {181,8) (77.8)
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) -819.0 (1245}
Net expected credlt losses on trade and other recelvables . (207.0} (85.5)
‘Depractation and amortisation charge, allowances and provislons - 14 (86.4} {113.1) -
. 'OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS) 525.6 (323.1)
Dividends received 0.4 -
Finance income 15 32.0 05
Finance costs 186 (1.4) (0.2}
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 556.6 (322.8).
Income tax 17 (122.0 64.7
NET PROFIT/{LOSS} FOR THE YEAR 434.6 {(258.1)

Net profit for the current year and the net loss for the prior year are wholly attributable to the equity holder of

ScottishPower Energy Retall Limited,

All results relate to cantinuing operations.

The accbmpany[ng Nates 1 to 20 are an Integral part of the Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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'SCOTfISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 " 2022

fm £m
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 434.6 {258.1}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME '
tterns that may be subsecuently reclassified to the Income statement:
Cash flow hedges:
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - 0.1
items that will not be redassifled to the Income statement:
Cash fiow hedges: )
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges C : {05} .
Tax relating to cash flow hedges S 0.1 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (0.4) 0.1
4342 {258.0)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income for both vears is wholly attributable to the equity ho!&er of ScottishPower Energy Retall
Limited. ’ :

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2023

. . : Retatned

Share Hedge {losses)/

capital reserve  earnings
{Notefa)) (Note{b)) (Notef(c)) - Total
- . £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2022 - . - 554 (0.1) {2857} {230.4)

Loss for the year attrlbutable to the equity holder of the Company - - (258.1) (258.1)

Changes In the value of cash fiow hedges : - - - 0.1 - 0.1
At  January 2023 i : : 55.4 . {543.8) {488.4)
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holder of the Company - N A34.6 434.6
Changes In the value of cash fiow hedges o - {0.5) . - {0.5)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - Q.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2023 55.4 0.4)  {108.2) . [54.2)

{a} At 31 December 2023, the Company had 55,407,000 allotted, called up and fully paid drdinary shares of £1 each (2022 55,407,000). Holders of
these ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time; amounts an the capitallsation of profits and reserves; and notice and
attendance at general mestings of the Company, with every member entitled Lo one vote on a show of hands and on a poll one vote for, every

share held. .
{b} The hedge reserve represents the bal
amount of & non-finanelal asset.
(t) Retained. {losses)/earnings comprise the cumulative bala
transactions with shareholders, principally dividends,

ance of galns and losses on cash flow hedgés {net of taxation} not yet transferred to Income or the car'rylng

nce‘nf profits and losses recognised hn the financlal statements as adjusted for

The accompanylng Notes 1 to 20 are an integral part of the Statement of comprehensive income and the Statement of
changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2023. ‘
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS '
31 December 2023

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A COMPANY INFOMATION

ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited, registered company number 5(319028/ is a prfvate company limited by shares,
incorporated [n Scotland and Its registered addrass Is 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD.

B BASIS OF PREPARATION

Bi BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS
The Company is required- by law to prepare Accounts and to deliver them to the Reglstrar of Companles. The Accounts
are prepared In accordance with the Accounting Policies set out In Note 2, Monetary amounts are presented in pounds
Sterling and are rounded to the nearast hundred thousand unless otherwlse indicated, The Accounts are prepared on the
historical cost basis apart from certaln financial Habllltles which are measured at fair value

‘The Accounts have been prepared In accordance with Financlal Reporting Standard 102 ‘Reduced Dlsclosure Framework’
{(“FRS 101"}, In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements of International accounting standards (“AS"} as adopted by the UK ("UK-adopted IAS") iIn
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 including newly effectlve 1AS for the year ended 31
Decermber 2023 (refer to Note 1C). In applying FRS 101, the Company has mate amendments where necessary in order
to comply with the Companles Act 2006 and has set out below where FRS 101 disclosure exemptions have been taken:

e the preparation of a Statement of cash flows and the related notes;
s comparative perlod reconcillations for intanglble assets and property, plant and equipment;
s disclosures In respect of deferred tax assets and Habil!ties related to Pillar Two model rules income taxes;
certain disclosttras regarding revenue;
disclosuras in respect of transactions with wholly-owned subslidlaries of [berdrofa, 5.A.;
disclosures in respect of capital management;
the effects of new, but not yet effective, IAS proncuncements, and
disclosures in respect of the compensatlon of key management personnel,

As the consolidated financial statements of lberdrola, S.A. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also
_taken the exemptlons under FRS 101 avallable in respect of certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 ’Falr Value -
Measurernent’ and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financlal Instruments: Disclosures’, ’

B2 GOING CUNCERN
The financlal statements have been prepared oha gomg concern basls whlch the directors consider to be appropriate for

the following reasons.

The principat activity of the Company is to undertake the retail sale of electricity and gas within the group headed by

SPUK, the Company's intermediate parent company. The Company's cash flows are therefore dependent on the.
. continuation, volume, and pricing of those operations and have been consldered as part of the SPUK Group's cash flow

forecasts, on which the directors of the SPUK Group have performed an assessmant of reasonably possible downsides.

To meet its working capital requirements, the Company participates In a UK centralised treasury function operated by
the Company’s Intermediate parent company, Scottish Power Himited, the parent company of SPUK. ScottishPower’s
treasury function works closely with Iberdrola to manage the Company's funding requirements. There has been ne
Indication thatthese arrangements may change. :

The directors have performed a golng concern assessment which indicates that, in reasonably posélble downsides, the
Company will fequire additfonal funds, through funding from SPUK, to meet its liabilittes as they fall due for at least
twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements, the going concern assessment period,

As with any company placing rellance on other group entities for financial support, the directars acknowledge that there
can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financlal statements, they
have no reason to belleve that it wilf not do so,

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Company will have sufficlent funds to continue to meet Its llabilities as

they fail due for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements and, therefore, have
prepared the ﬂnanciaf statements on a going concern basls.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2023

1 - BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

C IMPACT OF NEW |AS ‘ : ] :

As noted on the previous page, these Accounts have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted IAS. In preparing
_these Accounts, the Company has applied all relevant standards and interpretations that have been adopted by the Ukas

of the date of approval of these Accounts and that dre mandatory for the financlal year ended 31 December 2023 '

For the'year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has applied the follow]ng standards and amendments for the first
time: ' :

Standard ) . . ' ) . ] Note
« IFRS 17 Ansurance Contracts' including 'Amendments to IFRS 17' and "nitial Apptlcation of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - {a)
Comparative (nformation’ . . . ’

+ Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' and JFRS Practice Statement 2 'Making Materiality ' {2}
Judgements'; 'Disclosure of Accounting Pollcles' ' ‘ | _

« Amendments to {AS 8 'Accounting Pollctes; Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors; Definition of Accounting {a)
Estimates’ - e

+ Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax refated to Assets and {iabllitles arising from a Single . (a)
Transaction' I ' '

« Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes: international Tax Reform - Pillar Two Muodel Rules’ . {a).

{a) The app!icatlor's of these standards and amendments has net had a materlal Impact on the Company's accounting policles, financlal position or
performance.” . :

2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management may be required to make a number of judgements and assumptions regarding the future and about other
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting perlod that have a significant risk of resulting In a material
adjustment to the reported amounts of assats and |tabilities within the next financial year. The ‘significant estimatlon
uncertalntles and other Judgement made by management are set out helow. . '

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES '
Expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables ) . ‘ A
The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified model to measure ECLs, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance, for alf
energy customers’ trade recelvables. The Company has adopted the practical expedient wheraby It calculates the ECl. on
energy customers’ domestic and small medlum-sized entarprises {“SME"} trade receivables using a provislon matrix. In
line with previous years, the provision rates are hased upon the customers' payment plan, historical credit loss
experience and, where possible, adjusted for forecast informatlon. To establish levels of ECLs for these customers, the

recoverability of equivalent batances from the previous three years have been reviewed. -

There Is a level of estimation uncertainty In determining the proviston for domestic and SME customers, recognising the
recent fevel of energy market disruption, including the ohgoing cost of living crisls, the forecast uncertainty in macro-
economic indicators and the recent regulatory changes imposed by Ofgem on the abllity of suppliers to fit prepayment
meters, fimiting the options avallable to recover debt. In line with IFRS 9, a forward-ooking loss allowance has been
included to ensure that external factors are appropriately mitigated, S :

. Included within the gross carrylng amount of trade receivables Is £897.4 milllon {2022 £777.5 million) of billed

“recelvables. The loss allowance in relation to biled recelvables is £286.9 miltion {2022 £252.5 million), While the
. methodolagy and assumptions applied in estimating the ECL for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the provislon
held at that date in respect of the energy customers’ trade recelvables are deemed to be appropriate, change in these
assumptlons could materfally Impact the value of ECLs recorded within the next twelve months.

‘The actual level of billed recelvables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which could impact
operating profit positively or negatively. At 31 December 2023, the loss allowance for billed recelvables of £286.9 mililon
was supported by a projection based on a 36-month cash collection performance. A 5% increase in the overall expected
loss rate would Increase the loss aflowance by £44.9 milflon. A 5% decrease would decrease the loss allowance by £44.9

milllon. Given the three-year average moveinent In the loss allowance percentage and recognlsing the ongolng risk in
customers’-ability to pay due to the cost of living crisls, a 5% loss aliowance sensitivity Is considered appropriate.
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LWWITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS cantmued '
31 Decembet‘ 2023

2 . JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Accrued ‘unbllled” revenue

The Company operates in the GB energy industry, whose nature Is such that revenue recognition Is subject to a degree of
estimation. Revenue includes an estimate of the units supplfed to customers between the date of their last meterreading
and the year end. Thls is Included as unbilied revenue within Trade and other receivables and where DD customer
accounts are In a net credit bafance, is Included in Other payables within Trade and other payabtes. This estimate is
based oh external data supplied by the electricity and gas market settlement process and internal data relating to energy
purchases where settiement data Is not yet available. While these assumptions are believed to be appropriate, a change
in these assumptions could materlally Impact the value of the accrued revenue recorded within the next twelve months,
Where volumes are yet to reach final settlement, a provision is made against unbllled revenua recognised in respect of
those volumes, The provision Is determined by considering the current unbiled position, hlstorical trends, and any other
known factors. The value assigned to these estimated volumes Is based-on a welghted average price per unit derlved
from the bllling systems. This methodotogy Is conslstent with prior years and in liné with pnor years, settlement data
received post year end was reviewed and supported the provistontng level.

The estimated value of enargy delivered to customers is Included within bllled revenue {where an estimated reading is

included within an Issued involce) and unbilled revenue {where no invoice has been Issued), Gross unblled revenue -

included within the Statement of financial position at 31 December 2023 is £770.6 milllon (2022 £965.6 million). This is
before applying customer credlt balances of £1,051.0 miflion (2022 £1,157.5 mitlion}), 2 £27.9 million {2022 £28,0 million)
provision in respect of ECLs and a2 £75.8 million (2022 £20,8 milllon) provision in reiatlon to energy volumes which have
stilt to reach final settlement For further deta!ls on ECLs, refer to Notes 2 and 6.

Had actuat consumption been 4% higher or lower than the estlmate of unlts supplied {the average varlance based on
recent historical analysis), this would have resulted in revenue recognised for unbilled amounts belng £43.6 milllon
higher and fower respectively, The value assigned to this volume sensitivity is based on a welghted average prlce per unit
* derlved from the billing systems. Approximately 95% of unbilled revenue reiates to the most recent quarter where there
is a higher level of estimation uncertainty, :

" NON SIGMIFICANT JUDGEMIENT
Conslderation of climate change - :
The Impact of climate change, Including risks identified In the Strategic Report on page 7, on the f!nancsal statements has
been considered. No material impact on the judgements and estimates made in the preparation of the financial
statements has been identified. This consideration facussed on the Company's golng concern position, ircluding the cash
flow forecasts preparad for the directors’ assessment referred to in Note 1B2.

Addftionally, consideratlon has been glven to any estimates over the longer-term which should be disclosed to allow for
an understanding of the financlal statements. The Company has no estimates of this nature to disclose.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the flnanclal statements are set out below. In the process of
determining and applying these accounting polleles, jidgement, apart from those Involving estimations (as noted above),
Is often required that can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements Management has made
no such judgements,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LEASED ASSETS

(MPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPIVENT AND LEASED ASSETS
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS o

RENEWABLES OBLIGATION CERTIFICATES

DNEROUS CONTRACTS

REVENUE

PROCUREMENTS

OTHER OPERATING RESULTS
_FOREIGN CURRENCIES

TAXATION o

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT SCHEMES

EErR-—ITOaTmmOO®ED
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TQ.THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2023

2 TUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
A INTANGIBLE ASSETS o
_ (a) Computer software. , _ - :
The costs of acquired computer software, such as licences, that are expected to generate economic benefits over a
period In excess of one year, are capitallsed on the basis of the costs Incurred to acguire, and bring to use; the specific
software, The cost of software as'a service {*SaaS”} doud agreements are capitalised when the Company controls the
software, Costs relating to Infrastructure or platform as a service cloud agreements are not capitalised. The related
Habilities for capitallsed SaaS contracts are measured based on the discounted sum of the future payments for edch
contract and presented within Other financial llabifities, Amortisation of acquired computer software is on a straight-line
basls over thelr operational lives, which is generally up to five years. ' ‘

Costs directly attributable to the development of computer software programmes, that are expected to generate

economlc benefits over a period in excess of one year, are capltalised and amortised on a stralght-line basis over their

estimated operational lives. Costs Include employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate

proportion of relevant overheads directly attributable to bringing the software into use. Amortisation of developad
. computer software costs Is over periods of up ta alght years, '

In all cases, maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

{b} Customer contract costs - . . o . . .
The Company capitalises the incremental costs of obtaining cartain customer contracts, principally sales commissions, if
they. are expected to be rechvered. These are recorded as a separate asset class within Intangible assets and amortised
on a systematic basls according to the average expected Iife of contracts with customers that are assoclated with such
costs. The amortisation perlod is between two and four years. The Company has elected to apply the amortisation period
toa po_rtfollo'of contracts with similar characteristics as the Company expects that the effect on the financlal statements
is not materially different from applying it to the Individ ual contracts. ’ ;

B PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost and depraciated on a stralght-line basis over the estitnated operational

" lives of the assets once commissioned. Property, plant-and equipment includes capitalised emptoyee costs and other
directly attributable costs. Reviews of the estimated remaining fives and residual values of property, plant and =
eguipment are undertaken annually, Residual values are assessed based on prices prevalling at each reporting date.

tand is not depreciated. The main depreciation peflods_used by the Company are as set out below:

) . Years
Srmart meters and measuring devices S 10
Other faclilties S ' . ' 0
Other itéms of property, plant and equipment . : 4 - B0

'C LEASED ASSETS : ,
A contract [s, or contalns a lease if, at Inception, the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset, the Company uses the deflnltion of a lease In Leases ("IFRS 16”). '

An identifled asset will he ‘specified expiicitly, or implicitly, in the contract, and will be physically distinct or represent
substantiatly all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. if the supplier has a substantive substitution right, the asset

is not identifled,

A contract convays the right to control the use of an identified asset If the customer has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits fram use of the asset throughout the pertod of use, and the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset. The customer has this right when they have the deciston-making rights that are most relevant to
. changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. Where this is predetermined, the customer has the right to direct
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2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTHIATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES contini:ed
the use of the asset If either they have the right to operate the asset or they designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purposes it will be used.

The Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and thus accounts for the iease and non-lease
- components in a contract as a single lease component

As a lessee, the Company recognises a rlght-of—use asset at the lease commencement date, measured initlaly at cost.
This comprises the Inltlal amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any Initial direct costs Incurred, and an estimate of costs ta dismantle and remove the
underlylng asset, or restore the underlying asset or the site on which it (s focated, less any lease Incentives received.

The right-of-use asset Is subsequently depreciated on a stralghtdine basis from: the commencement date over the
shorter of the useful fife of the underlying asset and the lease term, The right-of-use assat is reduced by any impairment
losses and adjusted for certaln remeasurements of the lease liability. The Company presents Right-of-use assats within
Non-current assets in the Statement of financial position and the deprecation charge is recorded within Depreciatfon,
amortisation and prowssons In the Income statement, .

The iease liabllity recognised at the commencement date Is meastired Initially at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Where the rates Implicit in the leases cannot be readily determined, the liabilities are
discounted using the Company’s Incremental borrowing rate, belng the currency-specific interest rate that would ba-
ncurred on & loan, with similar terms, to purchase a simlar asset. The incremental borrowing rates will be updated
annually and applied to leases commencing In the subsequent year, Tharefore, the lease llability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective Interest rate method, Lease payments included ‘In the measurement of the
leaseliability comprise fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments); variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate initlally measured using the Index or rate at the commencement date; lease payments fn an optional
renewal petiod if the Company Is reasonably certalh to exercise an extenslon option; and penalties for early termination
of a lease unless the Company Is reasonably certain not to do so.

The lease ltability is remeasured when there Is a change In the future lease payments arising from a change in the index
or rate, or If the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise & purchase, extensioh or termination option.
This change in the lease liabillty will result in a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or in proflt or Ioss If the carrying arhount of the right-of-use asset is zero.

The Company presents lease liabilities separately in the Statement of flnanaa! position; the discount on the liabllitles
unwinds over the term of the lease and 15 charged to Finance costs In the' Income statemant.

D MPAIRMENT OF iINTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of Its Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and leased asséts to determine whether there s any Indication that those assets have suffered an Impalrment loss. If any
such Indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset (the greater of Its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to
sell) is estimated In order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to thelr present valuas using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money, the risks speclfic to the asset and lease Habllities under IFRS 16,

An Impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds Its estimated recoverable amount. Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, Any impairment is recognised In the Income statement in
the period in which itls identlfled. Impalrment losses recognlsed in prior perlods are assessed at each reporting date for -
any indications that the loss has decreased or no Jonger exists. An Impalrment loss Is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An Impalrment Joss Is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrylng amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been recognised, net of depreclation or
amortisation, If no impairment loss had been recognlsed. .
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E RETIREMENT BENEFITS . L o :
ScottlshPower provides pensions through two defined benefit schemes and one defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme In the UK. ScottishPower Energy Retall Limited is a participating company In these group arrangements, and the
contributions for the defined benefit schemes are based on penslon costs across all thé participating companies, The
Company Is unable to Identify its share of the underlying assets and [labilities In the defined beneflt schemes, as the-
scheme administrators do not calculate these separately for each of the various companies participating In the schemes
and therefore treats these schemes as If they were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the income
statement In respect of pension costs is the contributions payable in the year. .

F F|NANC}ALINSTRUMENTS - :
A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rlse to a financlal asset of one entity and a financial Hability or equity

instrusment of ancther entity.

F1 FINANCIAL ASSETS

F1.1 CLASSIFICATION .
Elnancial assets are classifled as being measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive Income

{“FVOCI") or falr value through profit or toss {“FVTPL"). The classification of financlal assets depends on the Company's
business mode! for managing them to generate cash flows, ~

The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, seffing the financial
assets, or both, The business model of the Company does not depend on thie Intentions of management for an individual
instrument. Therefore, it is not an Instrument-by-Instrument classiflcation appraach but determined from a higher level
of aggregation, ) ) '

A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost If it meets both of the following conditions: .
e itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

"« its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the princlpal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the ‘SPP!’ test.

Financlal assets are only sui:sequenﬂy raclassified when the Company changes Its business model for managing them.
Reclassifications are effective from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model. Such
reclassiflcations are expected to be Infrequent. ' . o

F1.2’ RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

{a} Initial recognition and measurement : _ _ ‘
All financlal assets, except for trade recelvables which are Inltially recognlsed when they orlginate, are inittally recognised
when the Company hecomes party to the contractual provislons of the instrument. ’

FInancIaI assets are Inltially measured at falr value with the exception of trade recelvables without a slgnificant financing
component which are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers' {"IFRS 15"). - i

(b} Subsequent-measurement and gains and losses _ ) -
Financial assets classifled as amortised cost are subsequent!y measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest

method. The amortised cost Is reduced by expected cradit losses. Interest Income, forelgn exchange gains and losses,
and net credit losses are recognised In the Income statement. Any galn of loss on derecoghition Is also recognlsed In the

Income statement.

Financlal assets classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at fatr value, Net galns and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognised In the Income statement unless the financlal asset is a derlvative which is part of a

_ hedging relationship. it may not bepossible to obtaln & market valuation for some unquoted Investments, therefore they

are valued at cost and assessed for impairment,

Flnancial assets classified as FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses are recognised within
Other comprehensive income, Co
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{c) Perecognition ’

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of slmilar financial assets) is
derecognised when elther the rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expirecl thate Is_no reasonable
expectation of recovering all, or a portion of, the contractual cash flows.

(d} Impalrment of financial assets
(i} Measurement of ECLs
Disclosures relating to impairment of ﬁnancml ‘assets are pro\rided In Note 6. The Company recognises an allowance for -
ECLs for ail debt instruments not classified as FVTPL, ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit josses. The'
Company has adopted the simplified ECL model for its trade recelvables and the general ECL model for all other flnancia!
assets measured at amortised cost.

In applylng the simplified model, loss allowances for trade recelvables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
The Company has segmented its trade recelvables between those relating to energy customer debt and those within the
rest of the Iberdrola Group, For eath grouping, the Company has established a provision matrix that Is based on its
historleal cradit loss experience, adjusted for, where possible, forward-laoking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment in which they operate {refer to Note 6 for further details).

For energy customer debt, ECLs are calculated based upon a provision matrix approach that reflects the risk Inhereft In -
different payment plans, the differences In collection rates between debt attributable to current or lost {final) custorners
and the greater challenge m collecting older debt balances. For I&C customers, the ECL is based on external credit
scoring. The Energy Customer Credit Risk and Corporate Risk teams remaln vigilant In tracking any liquidity Issues on
existing customers to identify any pre-emptive actions requlred, Including putting collateral or letters of cradit In placa.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company in actordance with the contract and those the Company expects to recewe)

ECLs for all ather financlal assets are recognised using the general model which works as follows:
¢« for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase In credit risk sine Initial redognitlon, ECLs
are provided for credit losses resufting from default events that are considered possible within the shorter of the
next twelve months and the iife of the financial asset {a twelve-month ECLY; and _
s for credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credlt risk since initlal recognition, a loss
allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, lrrespective of the t:mlng of
the default (a jifetlme ECL}. -

As an exception to the general model, If the credt risk of a financial instrument is low at the reporting date, management

can measyre Impairment using a twelve-month ECL and so It does not have to assess whether a sighificant increase in

credit risk has occurred, For this operational slmpliﬂcatlon to apply, the financlal instrument has to meet the fo!!owlng

requirements: .

s [thas alow risk of default;

s  the borrower is considered, in the short-term, to have a strong capaclty to meet Its obligations; and

e the lender expects, in the longar-term, that adverse changes in economic and business conditions might, but will
not necessarlly, reduce the abllity of the borrower to fulfil its obiigatlons .

The Company conslders financial assets to have low credit risk when thelr credit risk ratlng Is equ:valent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment-grade’. The Company considers this to be B8B- or higher per rating agency S&P
Global Ratings, Therefore, all of the Company’s other financlal assets are considered to have low credit risk at both the
beginning and end of the reporting period.

The Company has different definitions of default (risk of non-payment) for different groups of customers and recelvables.
For some groups it Is based upon the number of days past due and for others it Is when internal or external Information
indicates that the Company is unltkely to receive the outstanding contractual amount in full (before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company). These varying deflnitfons of default are tnherent In the loss aEIowances
applied in both the simp!lfled and general ECL models, :
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{ii) Credit-Impalred financial assets - . :

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carrled at amortised cost are ‘credit-impaired’,
This is the case when one or inare events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financlal asset have occurred. Generally, recelvables are credit Impaired when payment Is past the contractual payment
date. ' - ‘

F2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
F2.1 CLASSIFICATION .
Financial liabilities are classifled as measured at amortised cost.

F2.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT )
{a) Initlai recognition and measurement

All financlal llabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net. of directly attributable
transaction costs. -

{b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabillties classified as FVTPL are measured at falr value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, -
are recognised in the Income statement. : '

Other financia! Habllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method, Interest.
expense and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income statement, Any gain or foss on
derecognition is also recognised In the Income statement. This |s the category most relevant to the Company as It
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowlngs, and trade and other payables, ‘ .

Amortised cost is calculated by taking inté account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees, or costs that are an
integral part of the effactive Interest rate, The effective Interest charge is included as Finance costs in the Income
statement. This subsequent measurement technigque does not apply where the loan or borrowing Is a hedged item In an
effective falr value hedglng refationship. ' ; :

{c} Derecognition- o :
The Company derecognises a financlal liability when the obligation under that jtability is discharged, cancelied or has
expired, When an existing financlal llabllity {s replaced by another from the same {ender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing ifability are substantlally modified, the original Hability Is derecognised and a new liability
. recognised. The difference In their respective carrying amounts is racognised in the Income statement,

F2.3 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES .
The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial Hability, and reports the net amount, only when the Company has a
tegally enforceable right to set off the amounts and Intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and

settle the liabliity simultaneously.

G RENEWABLES OBLIGATION CERTIFICATES : . :
The Company participates In the Renewables Obligation ("R0”) scheme administered by Ofgem. As there are no specific
rules under AS dealing with their treatment, the Company classifies Renewables Obligation Certlficates {"ROCs”) as
Inventorles because they are a direct input cost to the process of supplying customers. ROCs are recognised at thelr
acquisition cost and charged to the Income statement as the obligations arlse.’

- The Company recognises liabilities In respect of its obligations to dellver ROCs at the value at which they were initlally
recorded on the Statement of financial position. Any estimated shortfall in the Hability is calculated based on the relevant
buyout price at the reporting date, ROCs surrendered to meet the RO utilises the related provision.

H ONEROUS CONTRACTS
An onerous contract is one In which the unavoldable costs of meeting the obligatlons under the contract exceed the

economic benefits expected to be recelved under It. The unavoldable costs under a contract reflect the feast net cost of
exiting from the contract, which Is the fower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arlsing from
fallure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises of both the ineremental costs of and also an allocation of
other costs that directly relfate to fulfilling that contract.
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| REVEMNUE . '

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods-or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

(a) Supply of electricity and gas

The Company's performance obligations are the supply of electricity and/or gas to customers. Both these performance
obligations afe satislled over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the Company's
performance as it supplies electricity and gas. The Company has a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance to date, Therefore, In line with IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised In the amount to which the Company has a right to Inveice based on the volume of units supplied durlng the
year and the tarlff agreed with the customer.

The Company participated in various government support schemes deslgned to support energy customers In GB through
the current cost of fiving crisis, The EPG stheme (which commenced on 1 October 2022 and ran untll 31 March 2024)
required suppliers to charge a reduced tariff to domestic customers where thelr contractual tariff exceeded a
government-set rate. The EBRS scheme also commenced on 1 October 2022 but ended on 31 March 2023 and was
replaced by the similar EBDS scheme which-ran from 1 Aprll 2023 until 31 March 2024, These later schemes required
suppliers to apply a capped discount to the bills of non-domestic customers where thelr contractual rate exceeded the
government-set rate, Therefore, the revenue recognised for the duration of these schemes was In line with IFRS 15 and
based on the volume of units supplied to customers and the reduced or discounted tarlff as determined by the scheme

riles,

The Company operates in the GB energy Industry, whose nature Is such that revenue recognition is subject to a degree of
estimation. Revenue Includes an estimate of the yhits supplied to customers between the date of thelr last metar
reading and the year end. This Is Included as unbilled revenue within Trade and other receivables and where DD -
customer accounts are in a net credit balance, is included in Other payables within Trade and other payables. This
estimate Is based on external data suppifed by the electrlcity and gas market sattlement process and Internal data
relating to energy. purchases where settlement data is not yet available. Where volumes are yet to reach final
settlement, @ provision is made against unbliled revenue recognised in respect of those volumes. The proviston is:
determined by considering the current unbilled position, historlcal trends, and any other known factors such as the
current economic climate. The value assigned to these estimated volumes Is based on a welghted average price per unlt
derived from the billing systems. This methodo!ogy is.consistent with prior years. .

Involces are generally ralsed at monthly or quarterly intervals, which. customers typlcally settle on the same basis
respectively, except for prepayment customers who pay in' advance. Billed and unbilled revenues are recorded in
recelvables. Amauhts In contract Habflities consist of direct debit customar payments that are in excess of the assoclated
units of energy delivered, and final customer credits, ' :

Government support has been received by the Company to fund the EPG, EBRS and EBDS schemes. Government grants.
are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources In return for past or future compliance with certain -
cohditlons relating to the operating activities of the entlty. Such grants are recognised In the Income statement on a
systematic basis over the periods In which the costs for which the grants are intended to compensate are expensed;
where the Income recelvable |s compensation for expenses o losses already incuired, the grant income is recognised in
the Income statement In the perfod in which it becomes receivable, All three schemes are consldered to be a
government grant with the income received being recognised in fine with the energy consumption by each eligible
customer throughout the scheme periods. The income recognised In line with I1AS 20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government Assistance’ {“IAS 20") has been recorded In Revenue.— Revenue received from
government support schemes in the Income statement as the funding Is support for lost customer revenue, There is no
difference in the timing of the recognition of this revenue under IAS 20 compared to under IFRS1S had the schemes not
be In place. As the grant funding Is pald In arrears, the amounts due from the UK Gaverninent has been accrued within
Other recelvables — Recelvables in respect of government support schemes on the Statement of flnancial position untll

- patd.

(b) Other revenues

" Other revenues, comprises various revehue streams which are all lndivldually Immatertal, Including revenues in relation
to the Smart Solutions business. For each revenue stream, revenue is recognised based on the consideration specified in
the relevant contract with the customers, to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount
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of cumulative revenue recognised will not oceur In the future, As relevant for each revenue stream, and in line with the
performance obllgations in each contract, the Company recognises revenue elther at a spacific point in time or over a
period of time based on when contro! Is transferred to the-customer, o

J  PROCUREMENTS . . 7 :
Procurements are princlpally the cost of electriclty and gas purchased In relation to energy supply, and related diract
costs and services for the of use of the energy network. Costs are recorded on an accruals basis.

i OTHER OPERATING RESULTS . . -
Other operating results is principally comprised of racharges of Company activities to other fberdrola Group companies.

L FORFEIGMN CURRENCIES .

Transactions In foreign currencies are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. At the year end,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencles are transiated at the rate. of exchange ruling ot the
reporting date, with exchange gains and losses recognlsed [n Finance tncome and costs in the [ncome statement.

M TAXATION _ _
Assets and llablifties for current tax are cafculated using the tax rates that have been enacted, or substantively enacted,

at the reporting da_te.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable, or recoverable, on the difference between the carrylng amounts of assets
and llabllities In the Statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable
profits (terporary differences) and Is accounted for using the balance sheet liabifity method. Deferred tax liabilitles are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or éredlis
~ can be utllised. The carrylng amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that It Is no longer probabie that sufficlent taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered. ' '

Deferred tax is calcutated on a non-discounted basls at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is expected to be settled, or the asset realised, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged to the Income statement, except where It relates to itams charged or credited
to equity (via the Statement of comprehensive income}, In which case the deferred tax is also recognised In equity and s
shown in the Statement of comprehensive income. ' '

Tax on the profit or joss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the thcome statement
except to the extent that It relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it
is recognised directly In equity or shown in the Statement of comprehensive income. For income tax arising on dividends,
‘the related tax is recognised in the income statement, Statement of other comprehensive Income, or in equlty

© consistently with the transactions that generated the distributable profits. ‘ '

- N GbVERNl\ﬂENT SUPPORT SCHEMES ~ ENERGY BILLS SUPPORT SCHEME AND ALTERNATIVE FUEL PAYMENT SCHEMES |
The Company participated n the EBSS and Alternative Fuel Payment (“AFP") schemes which were designed to support
energy customers in GB through the cost of living crisls, running alongside the EPG and EBRS schemes discussed at Note
. 21 above, The EBSS was cffective from 25 September 2022 and required suppliers to provide £400 to domestic efectricity
customers between October 2022 and March 2023, The Domestlc AFP scheme, which was effective from 25 January
2023 and ran for one year, réquired suppliers to provide £200 to domestlc users of alternative fuels who they had a
contractual relationship with, The equivalent AFP scheme for non-domestic users of alternative fuels was effective from
8 February 2023 and ran for one year and required suppliers to provide a payment of £150, The Company generatly
raceived funding from the UK Government in advance of the payments being made to customers, The funds were
recorded as Other payables — Payables In respect of government support schemes untll the customer payments were
made. Income was recognised as Revenue — Revenue recelved from government support schetnes in the Income
statement upon maldng the customer payment. In line with IFRS 15, the conslderation payable to the customer was
recorded as a reduction to Revenue. Where customer payments were made In advance of the government funding being -
recelved, the costs were recorded as prepald scheme obligatioh costs. The Company was restricted in how It could use
the cash recelved from the UK Government and heid a ring-fenced bank account in relation to the £BSS. The restyictions
did not change the nature of the assets, only the purpose tor which they could be used, thus the funds were considered
as a component of Cash equivalents. B ' : :
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3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Customer
Computer contract |
saftware costs Total
Year ended 31 December 2023 Note fm £m £m
“Cost: :
At 1 January 2023 : 326.4 214.0 5404
Additions ) " a) ‘ 215 21.0 42,5
Disgiosals {1.3) {86.5) (87.8)
At 31 December 2023 ) 346.6 148.5 495,1
Amortisation: .
At 1 January 2023 ] 300.5 124.7 425.2
Amortisation for the year A 15.3 541 69.4
bisposals _ ' {1.3} {86.5) (87.8)
At 31 December 2023 : ' 3i4.5 92.3 406.8
Net book value:
At 31 December 2023 32.1 56.2 883
At 2 lanuary 2023 25.9 893 115.2

{a}  Included within computer software additions s £0.1 miltion (2022 £1.,1 mélion) from Intersal developrment.

{b)  The cost of fully amortlsed computer software stilt In use at 31 Decembar 2023 was £289.6 mlllfon {2022 £278.9 ralflicn).

(e} Computer software Includes Saas cloud arrangements with a carrylng value of £1.9 miltlon (2022 £all).

4  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{a) Movements In property, plant and equipment in use

Other Jtems of

Smart . property, plant
meters and Other and equipment Plant in the
measudng facilities In use course of
. . devices {Mote {} (Mote {ID)} consteuctlon Tatal
‘Year ended 31 December 2023 : £m £m £m Em Fm
Cost: : . : '
At 1 January 2023 10.8 203.4 - 233 - 237.5
Addltions . 48 - 0.1 0.6 5.6
At 31 December 2023 10.9 208.2 23.4 0.6 243.1
Depreclation:
At 1 January 2023 9,1 75.6 11.2 - 95,9
Depreciation for the year ] . 0.4 15.4 - ) 1.0 16.8
At 31 December 2023 9.5 ) 91.0 : 12,2 112.7
Net book value!
At 31 December 2023 i 1.4 117.2 412 0.6 130.4 .
At 1 January 2023 ) ) 1.7 127.8 12,1 1416
- T -
The net book value of proparty plant and equipment at 31 Dacember 2023 is analysed as follows:
Property, plant and equipment In use 1.4 117.2 11.2 - 129.8
Praperty, plant and equlpment Irt the course of - - - 0.6 0.6
1.4 1172.2 11.2 0.6 130.4

() Other faciities comprises smart meter infrastructure assets,
{(}  Other items of property, plant and equipment principally comprises fand and bultdlngs and IT equipment.

(I} The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment stil in use at 31 December 2023 was £16.3 mifllon {2022 £13.8 miltion).

{iv} included within the cost of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2023 are assets In use not subject to depreciation, being land, of £0.2

enlllion {2022 £0.2 million},

{b) Capltal commitments

The Company had £0.5 millon {2022 £2.0 miflion) of capitaE commitments at 31 Dacember 2023 expecied to be settled

. within one year In both the current and prior year.
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5 LEASES
The Company leases bulidings and vehicles. Information about leases for which the Company |s a lessee is presented

"~ below.

{a} Nature of Ieases

Bufldings :

The Company leases huﬂdmgs primarily for office space. The leases have terms of between 22 and 24 years, Certaln
leases have optlons to terminate subject to a hotice pen lod typically of up to one month.

Some leases of buildings contaln extension options exercisable by the Company . at the end of the non -canceflable
contract period or an agreed point before that date. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include extenslon options
in leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by
the lessors. At lease commencement, the Company will assess whether it is reasonably certain to exerclse the extension
‘options and reassesses this If there is a significant event or change in circumstances within its control.

Vehicles ]
‘The Company leases vehicles with |ease terms of four to six years, primarlly be]ng pool vehicles to mobilise its

operational staff,

Other information -
~ The Company has not committed to any leases that have not yet commenced. The Company has no contracts containing
residual value guarantee, no leases subject to slgnlficant restrictions or covenahts and no sale and leaseback

transactions. .

(b) Right-of-use assets E ‘
Buildings Vehicles. " . Total

Year anded 31 December 2022 ' Note . fm £m Em
" Costt- - ‘ _ '
At 1l January 2022 . 0.4 - 0.7 1.1
Adjustments for changes in llabilities { 0.1 - 0,1
At 31 December 2022 05 0.7 S 1.2
Depreclation: . ' . : o ' .
At 1 January 2022 : 0.3 0.4 L - 0.7
Chatge for the year ' .02 0.2 0.4
At 31 December 2022 . 0.5 0.6 1.1
et book value: L
At 31 Decamber 2022 : . - : 0.1 0.1
© At 1 January 2022 . : 01 0.3 : 04

a5
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5  LEASES continued

Bulldings Vehicles . Total
Yaar ended 31 December 2023 tota . £m : £m ) £
Cost; ' )
At 1 January 2023 _ S 08 0.7 1.2
AdJustments for changes in labHitles {0 0.2 ) 0.1 0.3
At 31 December 2023 0.7 0.8 1.5
Depraclation; C .
At 1 January 2023. . 0.5 0.6 1.1
Charge for the year ' 0.1 0.1 0.2
At 31 December 2023 0.6 ' 0.7 1.3
Net book value: _ : ‘
At 31 December 2023 - 01 0.1 0.2
At 1 January 2023 - S : 0.1 0.1 .

{h  Adjustments for changes in llabilitles are movements In the right-of-use asset rasufting from remeasurement of the assoclated lease liabliity to .

refiect changes to the lease payments due to any reassessment or fease modifications.
{8} There are no right-of-use assets measured at revalued amounts,

{c) Lease liabilities ) .
The following tabie sets out a maturlty anafysis of non-derivative lease liabilities, showlng the undiscounted payments to

be made after tHe reporting date,

2023 2022

) £m £m-
Less than one year ¢ 0.2 0.1
One to five years 0,1 -
Total undiscounted lease fiahilities at 31 December , 0.3 01
Finance cost . ' (0,1 -
Total discounted lease liabilities 0.2 0.1
Analysis of total iease labllities ‘
Non-current ' 0.1 -
Current 0.1 0.1
Total 0.2 ' 0.1

Detalls of ScottishPower’s, and therefore the Company's, risk management strategy for Hquidity risks inherent In its lease
liability are descrlbe_d in the Financial Instruments sectfon of the Strateglic Report.

{d} Total cash outflow for leases : '
' 2023 2022

£m £m
Total £ash outflow for leases {0.3) (0.3}
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SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

31 December 2023
6 TRADE AND OTHER RECE!VABLES
. 2023 2022
Notes Em £m
Current trade and other recelvables: ) ’
Recelvablas due from Iberdrola group companies - trade and other, (a) 21.8 - 217
Recelvables due from therdrola group companles - loans b 407.2 570.1
Receivables due from Iberdrola group compantes - interest : - 283 0.2
Trade recelvables (Including unbilied revenue) . e} 944.6 995,6
Prepayments ' ' 06 1.1
Recelvables in respect of government support schemes . i asn 1220
Other receivables ’ (a) 29.5 253
- () 1,471.9 . 1,736.0
Non-current trade and other recelvables: : .
- 9,2

Other recelvables .

(2} _ The Company utilisas forms of colateral, externally and internally with ScottishPower companles, to manage Its cradit exposdre in respect.of the
provision of network services, Al collateral posted is settted in cash. At 31 Dacember 2023, the Campany posted cash coltateral of £42.5 millien
(2022 £38.1 milllon) and posted letters of credit of £28,3 milllon (2022 £15.7 milllon}. '

(i) Curfent loans due from therdrola Group companies are fecelvable on demand with Interest linked to the Bank of England base rate {“Base”).

_{g) included withia the gross cerrylag amount of trade recelvables Is £897.4 rlliton {2022 £772.5 milllon) of biljed recelvables for domestlc and SME

customners. The loss allowance In refation to domestlc and SME billed receivables is £286.9 miltion (2022 £252.5 mitllon). While the methodeology
and assuraptions appited In estimating the ECL for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the provision held at that date in respect of the energy
customers’ trade recelvables are deermed to be appropriate, 4 change I thesa assumptlons could materially impact the vatue of ECLs recorded
within the next twelve months, ‘ '

(d) At 31 December 2023, the Company Jiadh receivables due from the UK Government of £35.0 milkon (2022 £52.5 milllon), £2.2 million (2022 £60.7
mitlion} and £1.7 milon (2022 Enl) refating to the EPG, EBRS and FBDS schemes respectively, At Decernber 31 2022 this balance also Included
£8.8 million of prepaid FBSS obligation costs refating to payments made to certain customers In advance of the year end. ' :

{e} The following table provides Information about IFRS 35 contract balances Inclheded within Trade and other recelvables.

2023 . 2022
£m £m
964.8 973.7

£201.2 mifilon {2022 £82,1 million) of impalrment losses were racognised durlng the year on IFRS 15 Recelvables arlsing from the Company’s contracts
with custorners, ‘ -

7  DEFERRED TAX | .
Deferred tax recognised in the Accounts is as follows:

Properly, Derlvative ther

plant and financial  Teading temporary
equipnieat  instruments losses differences Total
. Note £m’ Em Em £m . Em
At 1 January 2022 .46 i - e (0.4} 4.2
Credit to the lncome statement - - {1.0) T« (a8) {0.8) {20.7)
At 1 January 2023 - 3.6 - {13.9) {1.2) (16.5)
Charge to the [ncome statement . : . 08 - 189 1.0 20,4
Recorded In the Statement of comprehensive income - . - {0.1) - - - {0.1)
At 31 Dacaember 2023 . () 41 - 0.1} - (0,2} a8

(a) Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2024 under the Flnance Act 2021 that Increased the UK Corporation tax rate Lo 25% fram 1 Aprll 2023,
Accordingly, the deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 have been provided at 5%, to reflect the rate that the temporary dlfferences are

expected to reverse at, . . . oo
|b} At 31 December 2023, the Company had utwtitised capital losses of £15.1 mifilon (2022 £15.1 million}. No deferred tax asset was recognised in

elther year due to the unpredictability of suitable future profit streams against which these losses may be utilised.
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8 INVENTORIES

2023 2022
Notes £m £m
. ROCs {a) 236.8 256.8
Other Inventories 3.0 06
. - {b) 2378 257.4
fa) ROCs surrendered 1 the year are used to settle the provision for the Renawables Obllgation, Refer to Note 26 and Note 5.
{b) Inventorfes with a vatue of £382.3 million (2022 £426.6 mililon} were recognised as an expense in the year.
9 PROVISIONS
Al Utilised Released At 31
January New during during  December
2022 provisions year year 2022
Year ended 31, December 2022 Notes - £m fm - £m £m £m
Reorganisation and restructuring .~ - ) 4.8 53 {5.8) (1.5} 2.8
Repewables Obligation {b) 344.7 4341, {452.1} - 326.7
Onerous contracts - : { 0.0 - {60.0) - -
Other - {4) 1.4 - - - 1.4
C 4109 439.4 {(517.9) (2.5} 340.9
Atl Utilised Released At31
January New during during  December
2023 - provisions year year © 2023
Year ended 31 December 2023 Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Recrganisation and restructuring - ‘ : ‘(a) .28 - 2.7) (0.1} .
Renewables Obligation o 326,7 388,7 {432.5) - 282.9
Other ) 1.4 53 - (0.1) 6.6
- ‘ 3309 394.0 {435.2) {0.2) 289.5
2023 2022
Analysls of totaj provisions Em £m
Non-current - 4.1
Current ., 289.5 326.8
289.5 330.9

{a} The opening provisien In 2022.refated to a restructuring programme that launched In 2021 and increased during 2022 to reflect various factars
impacting upon operational perfarmance and overall future profitabllity of the Company. The majority of- the proviston was utl!lsed of refeased
during 2022 with the remaining balance belng fully utilised or released In 2023,

{b) ‘Tha provision for Renewables Obligation at 31 December 2023 principally represents the value of ROCs for 2023 expected to be delivered In 2624,
The utifisation of £432.5 milllon in the year-represents the ROCs surrendered to meet the annual RO, The pmvlslon is not discounted, Hefer to

Note 2G for the accounting policy.

{c) The provislon at 1 January 2022 of £60.0 milfion, relating to retail energy onerous contracts was fully utlllsed by 31 Decemnber 2022, At 31
December 2022, those contracts were no longer onerous as the economic heneflts expected to be recelved from them exceeded the unavoldable

costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts.

{d} The provislons at both 3i Pecember 2023 and 31 December 2022 are not individually materlal to warrant separate disclosure,
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10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
. : . 2023 2022
: Notes £m ) £m
Current trade and other payables ‘ _ . .
Payables due to iherdrola-group companles and [oint ventures - . 762.8 1,548.0
Trade payables : : 240 170.2
Other taxes and social security 77.4 112.3
. Payments recelved on account 15 0.5
Capltal payables and accruals 21.8 23.2
Payables in respect of government support schemes (&) - 174.1
Other payables (b}, {c) - 5412 469.6
{d) 1,628.7 2,497.9°
_Non-current trade and other payables
Other payables (&) 0.5 1.0

(a} This balance primarily reflacted funds recelved from the UK Government 1t relation to the EBSS which had not yet been pald to customers,

(b} The Company utllises forms of external collateral to manage Jts credit exposure In respect of buslness customer accounts. All collateral held Is
settled In cash. At 31 December 2023, the Company held cash collateral of £1.4 millton (2022 £3.9 miflian} and letters of credit of £5.3 million
{2022 £5.3 million). : ]

{c) tnchided within Other payables is 2 balance of £532,3 million {£459.8 millfon) relating to net OD clistomer cradits (comprising customer credits of
£894.6 million (2022 £885.4 milllon) In excess of £426.7 million (2022 £442.8 mitllon} of unhllled recelvables) and a £65.4 million (2022 £17.2
milton} provision In relation to energy volumes which havae stilt to reach final settiement, ' ; .

{d) The fallowing table provides information about IFRS 15 contract fabltities included within Trade and other payables,
: ' : 2023 2022
: B £m . Em
Contract llabilites 534.8 634.4

Cantract Habilltles consists of direct debit castomer payments that are in excess of the assoclated units of energy dellverad and final customer credits,
The amount of contract Habliities recognised as lncome In the year Is £436.8 million (2022 £85.4 miilion). This £351.4 miliien Increase Is primarlly due to

the unwind of unbilted DD and credits,

11 REVENUE ‘
Disaggregation of revenue
: 2023 2022
. Notas £m ' £m
Supply of electriclty . Aahibi 4,4674 4,234.8
Supply of gas ’ {a}, {b) 1,709 1,511.8 -
Revenue received from goverament support schemes {© 1,426.2 591.5
Other 74 33
) {d} : 7,610.6 6,346.4

{a} As expialned in Acerisad ‘unbltfed” revenue as part of Note 2 and Note 2|, Revenue fram the supply of electricity and gas Includes an éstlmate of the unlits

supplied to customers between the date of thelr last meter reading and the year end. . .
{b) Revenue received for the year ended 31 December 2023 In respect of the EBSS and domesticand non-domestic AFP schemes (accouited For under IFRS 15)

was £509.1 millfon (2022 £498.5 mifion), £39.7 miltion (2022 £nll), and £4.8 miiflon (2022 Enil) respectively. All revenue recelved in respect of governiment

schemes accounted far under IFAS 18 15 offset by an an equal amount pald ta the custamer. ) .
{c} fevenue recelved for the yest endad 31 December 2023 In respect of the EPG, EBRS, and EBDS schemes {accounted for as goverament grants) was £1,322.8

_million {2022 £513.6 mition), £91.3 méllon (2022 £77.9 milltan), snd £12.1 mllllon {2022 £nll) respectively.
{d) A revenue is recognised over time and arlses from operations within the UK, .

39




SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS cantmued

31 December 2023
12 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION .
(a) Staff costs ' :
. . 2023 . 2022
£m £m
48.4 " 519

Wages and salaries

" Soctal securlty costs - 5.0 5.6
Pension and other costs 2.5 15.1
Total staff costs 62,9 72,6
Capitallsed staff costs (0.1) (L.1)

62.8 71.5

Charged to the Income statement

(b) Employee numbers
Tha average numbers of employees (full and part-time) employed by the Company, including UK based directors, were:

Avarage Average

2023 2022

Administrative staff 523 635
Dperations 402 522
Total 925 - : 1,157

{c) Retlrement benefits
The Company's cantributions payable in the year were £7.2 million {2022 £15.2 mlllion). The Company contributes to

ScottishPower's defined benefit and defined contribution schemes In the UK and- the contributions payable in the year
reflect the contributions payable In respect of active participants in the group schemes who are employed by the
Company. Full detalls of these schemes are provided In the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK, the
intermadiate holding company and the sponsoring company of the retirement benefit schemes. As at 31 Decerber
2023, the surplus In ScottishPower's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £123.2 million (2022 £240.0
million). The employer contribution rate for these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2023 was 52.9-53.4%.

13 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Other taxes . la) - 1818 S 778
{a) Other taxes malnly comprises obligatlons specific to the énergy Industry, principally ECO and WHD, : ’
14 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS
. T 2023 2022
. - £m £m
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge 16.8 © 166
Right-of-use asset depreciation charge 0.2 0.4
Intangible asset amortisation charge 69.4 96.1
- B86.4 113.1
15 FINANCE INCOME
2023 2022
£m £m
{nterest on bank and other deposits 21 -
Interest recelvable from Iberdrola Group companies 29.8 0.4
Forelgn exchange gains . 04 . © 04
32.0 0.5
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16 FINANCE COSTS ‘
. 2023 2022
. £m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 0.9 -
Interest on other borrowings 0.3 T
interest on lease liabliitles 0.1 -
Foreign exchange losses 0.1 0.2
. i4 0.2
17 INCOME TAX )
2623 . 2022
) £m . £m
Current tax: ‘ :
UK Carporation Tax for the year 62.2 ' {46.4)
Adjustments In respect of prlor years 39.4 - 24
Cutyent tax for the year 101.6 . {44.0}
Deferred tax: : ]
Orlgination and reversal of temporary differences ) . 69.8 - (14.7}
Adjustritents In respect of prlor years {49.5). (2.6}
impact of tax rate change on current year charge 04 {3.4
Deferred tax for the year 20.4 (20.7}
122.0 (64.7)

tncome tax for the year

The tax charge/{credit) on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities for the year varled from the standard rate of UK Corporatloft

Tax applicable to the Company as follows: . :
: ’ . 2023 2022

) - ‘ £m £m

Corporation Tax at 23.5% (2022 19%} ' ‘ 130.8 (61.3)
Adjustments in respect of prior years (10.1) (0.2}
Impact of tax rate change on current year tax 0.1 (3.4}

- Non-deductible expenses and other permanent differences 1.2 0.2
122,0 {64.7)

Income tax for the year -
Leglstatlon was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that increased the UK Corporation tax rate to 25% from L Aprll 2023. Accordlngly,
the deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 have bacn provided at 25%, to reflect.the rate that the tempordry differences are expacted to reverse

at, :

18 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2023 :
’ 2028 and
2024 2028 2026 2027 . 1028 thereafter Total
‘ £m £m £Em | Im Em £m £m
Other contractual commitments 18,6 - e - - - 18.6
2022
. 2028 and
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027  thereafter - Total
£m £m £m - £m £m £m £m

Other contractual commitments . . 308 - 04 - - - Co- 31.2
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19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{a) Transactions and halances arlslng in the normal course of business (excluding wholly-owned subsidianes of

Iberdrala, S.A) : .
2023 . 2022

Othaer Iberdrala Group  Other iberdrola Group

companles ' companles
Em £m

Types of transaction :
Salkes and rendering of services - ‘0.5
Purchases and recelpt of services . S ‘ {252.2) {468.8)
Balances outstanding . -
Trade and other recelvables ' : . 0.6 0.5
“Trade and other payables . (32.8) {50.6)

The amaounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled In cash. No guarai{teas have been glven or recelved.

{(b) Directors' remunaration

The remuneration of the directors that provided quallfylng services to the Company is shown below. As these directors
are remunerated for their work for the group headed by SPRHL, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
specifically in respect of services to this company. Both {2022 both) of the directors who served during the year were

‘remunerated directly by the Company, .
‘ 2023 2022

, " £00D £000
Agpregate remuneration In respect of qualifylng services 658 559
Number of directors who exercised share options 2 2
Number of directors who received shares under a long-term mcentIVe scheme z. 2
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a definad benefit scheme 2 2
. 2023 2022

Highest pald director - £000 £000 .
Aggregate remuneration A7t 388
82 7

Accrited pension benefit

{i} The highest pald director recelved shares under a long-term incentive scheme during both years.
{i) - The highest pald director exercised share optlons In both yeais.

(c) Immediate and ultimate parent company
The immediate parent company Is SPRHL. Coples of the accounts of SPRHL may be optatned from Its registered office at

320 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 SAD.

_ The directors regard Iberdmla, S.A. {incorporated in Spaln) as the ultlmate parent company, which I§ also the parent
company of the iargest group in which the results of the Company are consolldated. The parent company of the smallest
group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is SPUK. :

Coples of the consolldated accounts of Iberdrola, S.A. may be obtained from tberdrola, S.A., at its registered office, Torre
" Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadl 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain, Copies of the consolldated accounts of SPUK-may be obtafned from [ts
reglstered ofﬂce, 3205t Vmcent Street, Glasgow, Scutland G2 5AD.

The Company has ho other refated undertakings In addition to the parent undertakings as dlsclosed above,
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20 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Audit of the Annual accounts

2023 2022
£m fm
0.7 0.6
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